CABINET
Date: Wednesday 18 September 2019
Time: 5.00 pm
Venue: Lambeth Town Hall - Assembly Hall, Brixton, London, SW2 1RW
Copies of agendas, reports, minutes and other attachments for the Council’s meetings are available on
the Lambeth website. www.lambeth.gov.uk/moderngov

Members of the Committee
Leader of the Council, Councillor Jack Hopkins
Deputy Leader of the Council (Children and Young People), Councillor Jennifer Brathwaite
Deputy Leader of the Council (Environment and Clean Air), Councillor Claire Holland
Cabinet Member for Planning, Investment and New Homes, Councillor Matthew Bennett
Cabinet Member for Health and Adult Social Care, Councillor Ed Davie
Cabinet Member for Voluntary Sector and Partnerships (job share), Councillor Jim Dickson and Councillor
Donatus Anyanwu*
Cabinet Member for Housing, Councillor Paul Gadsby
Cabinet Member for Finance and Performance, Councillor Andy Wilson
Cabinet Member for Equalities and Culture, Councillor Sonia Winifred
Cabinet Member for Jobs, Skills and Community Safety (job share), Councillor Mohammed Seedat and
Councillor Jacqui Dyer*
*non-voting

Further Information
If you require any further information or have any queries please contact:
Sam Bailey, Telephone: 020 7926 0029; Email: sbailey3@lambeth.gov.uk
Members of the public are welcome to attend this meeting. If you have any specific needs please contact
Facilities Management (020 7926 1010) in advance.

Queries on reports
Please contact report authors prior to the meeting if you have questions on the reports or wish to inspect
the background documents used. The contact details of the report author are shown on the front page of
each report.

@LBLdemocracy on Twitter http://twitter.com/LBLdemocracy or use #Lambeth
Lambeth Council – Democracy Live on Facebook http://www.facebook.com/

Digital engagement
We encourage people to use Social Media and we normally tweet from most Council meetings. To get
involved you can tweet us @LBLDemocracy.

Audio/Visual Recording of meetings
Everyone is welcome to record meetings of the Council and its Committees using whatever, nondisruptive, methods you think are suitable. If you have any questions about this please contact Democratic
Services (members of the press please contact the Press Office). Please note that the Chair of the
meeting has the discretion to halt any recording for a number of reasons including disruption caused by
the filming or the nature of the business being conducted.
Persons making recordings are requested not to put undue restrictions on the material produced so that it
can be reused and edited by all local people and organisations on a non-commercial basis.

Representation
Ward Councillors may be contacted directly to represent your views to the Council: (details via the website
www.lambeth.gov.uk)

Speaking rights at Cabinet meetings










Cabinet normally has a large amount of business to consider at each meeting;
accordingly, the order of the agenda and time allowed for each item is decided by the Leader of
the Council beforehand;
Cabinet expects there to have been prior consultation with the public and other interested parties
on proposals and a summary of the results to be included in the report. Therefore, oral
contributions from members of the public at the meeting should not normally be necessary;
the time available may allow contribution(s) to be heard on reports on the agenda but this is
entirely at the discretion of the Leader of the Council. Anyone wishing to speak must advise the
Secretary to Cabinet before the day of the meeting, advising what aspect not covered in the report
they wish to cover;
any such contributions are required to be brief; a maximum of three minutes is likely to be
available;
speakers should ideally be on behalf of a number of people or a specific group;
speakers will be advised at the meeting whether and when they will be heard; and,
Councillors may speak at the discretion of the Chair on agenda items, and are entitled to speak on
matters that specifically concern their ward.

Security
Please be aware that you may be subject to bag searches and asked to sign in at meetings that are held
in public. Failure to comply with these requirements could mean you are denied access to the meeting.
There is also limited seating which is allocated on a first come first serve basis, you should aim to arrive at
least 15 minutes before the meeting commences. For more details please visit: our website.
Please contact Democratic Services for further information – 020 7926 2170 or the number on the front
page.

Directions to Lambeth Town Hall, London, SW2 1RW
Lambeth Town Hall is located at the southern end of Brixton Road and is a highly visible landmark. It can
be accessed via a number of bus routes and is a short walk from both Brixton Station and Brixton
Underground Station.

AGENDA

Page
Nos.

1.

Declarations of Pecuniary Interest
Under Cabinet Rule 1.5.2, where any Cabinet Member has a Disclosable
Pecuniary Interest (as defined in the Members’ Code of Conduct (para. 4))
in any matter to be considered at a meeting of the Council, a committee,
sub-committee or joint committee, they must withdraw from the meeting
room during the whole of the consideration of that matter and must not
participate in any vote on that matter unless a dispensation has been
obtained from the Monitoring Officer.

2.

Minutes of Previous Meeting

1-6

To approve the minutes of the meeting held on 22 July 2019.

3.

Lambeth Children's Homes Redress Scheme Update
Key decision
Councillor Jack Hopkins – Leader of the Council
Report Authorised by: Christina Thompson, Interim Strategic Director for
Finance & Investment
Contact for enquiries: Mark Nicolson, Head of Risk & Insurance, 0207 926
9305, mnicolson@lambeth.gov.uk

7 - 58

Page 1

Agenda Item 2

Ca
CABINET

Monday 22 July 2019 at 5.00 pm
MINUTES
PRESENT:
Cabinet Members:

Portfolio:

Councillor Donatus
Anyanwu

Cabinet Member for
Partnerships (job share)

Councillor Matthew
Bennett

Cabinet Member for Planning, Investment & New
Homes

Councillor Jennifer
Brathwaite

Deputy Leader of the Council (Children and Young
People)

Councillor Jim Dickson

Cabinet Member for
Partnerships (job share)

Councillor Paul Gadsby

Cabinet Member for Housing

Councillor Mohammed
Seedat

Cabinet Member for Jobs, Skills and Community Safety
(job share)

Councillor Andy Wilson

Cabinet Member for Finance and Performance

Apologies for absence

Councillor Claire Holland and Councillor Jack Hopkins

the

the

Voluntary

Voluntary

Sector

Sector

&

&

Also present:

Action
required by
1.

DECLARATIONS OF PECUNIARY INTEREST

Page 2
There were none.
2.

MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING

RESOLVED: That the minutes of the previous meeting held on 13
May 2019 be approved and signed by the Chair as a correct record
of the proceedings.
3.

LAMBETH PARTNERSHIP PLUS OFFICERS
The report was introduced by the Councillor Mohammed Seedat, Cabinet
Member for Job, Skills and Community Safety, Doug Perry, Assistant
Director Environment and Bayo Dosunmu, Strategic Director Resident
Services. It was noted that:
 The scheme enabled Local Authorities to purchase additional
Police resource that were dedicated to that geographical boundary.
 The main change to the new scheme was cost, the price for each
pair of Police Officers had increased by £45,000. The costs
increased due to Metropolitan Police Service budgetary pressures
and unsustainability at existing rates. The new rates still
represented a discount to the Local Authority, as MPS would
continue to pay other costs (pension and national insurance etc)
 The scheme would considerably impact on community safety by
focusing on a series of high harm issues, including; modern
slavery, women involved in prostitution, street population, night
time economy issues with a focus on serious violence, drug
trafficking and antisocial behaviour enforcement.
 Including the officers funded by the Business Improvement
Districts (BIDS), Lambeth arrangements would see 10 Police
Constables and 1 Police Sergeant being purchased, with the
scheme running until 2022.
 It was a Labour manifesto commitment to ensure Lambeth can
secure its share of local officers and this scheme would have a
considerable impact on the whole borough.
 Officers would deploy from Council buildings to where they are
needed, they would be based full time in the Civic Centre.
Cabinet Members commented that the it was disappointing that the costs
had increased but understood the rational. They were also concerned
about the lack of support from Central Government to provide additional
Police Officers across London and hoped the incoming Prime Minster
would honour his pledge for the increase.
RESOLVED:
That the purchase of 10 PartnershipPlus Police Constables and one
PartnershipPlus Sergeant, as part of the Met PartnershipPlus agreement,
at a total net cost of £746,250 be approved.

4.

LAMBETH GAMBLING POLICY 2019-2022
Councillor Paul Gadsby Cabinet Member for Housing, Bina Patel,
Licensing Manager, Nicole Terrieux, Consumer Protection Manager
presented the report and highlighted the following:
 The draft Policy would be very effective and set out a high
threshold for obtaining a gambling licence.
 This only covered physical licences, not online gambling, which
continued to be a concern for the Council and hoped Central
Government would consider more regulation of online gambling.
 Premises-based gambling operators were required to undertake a

Page 3





local gambling risk assessment of their premises and to assess the
potential impact that the premises and its operation may have on
the licensing objectives.
All prospective new gambling operators must consider local area
information provided by the Licensing Authority via the Statement
of Licensing Principles for Gambling (Licensing Policy).
Lambeth had produced a comprehensive local area profile which
took into account a range of factors and provides a reference point
regarding risk assessments.
The Licensing Authority would decide on the risks presented and
determine whether the steps provided by the applicants were
suitable to mitigate the risks of harm within the area. Each
application will be determined on its own merits.

Cabinet Members were content with the report but had concerns on the
enforcement of the Policy. It was also noted that the Public Health Impact
of gambling in the borough was high and left many people in difficult
circumstances as they become addicted or affected by gambling.
Councillor Brathwaite reminded Cabinet that they were recommending the
report to Full Council for approval and adoption.
RESOLVED:
That the gambling Policy be submitted to Full Council for approval and
adoption.
5.

BUDGET AND PERFORMANCE REPORT - QUARTER 4 OF 2018/19
The report was introduced by Councillor Andy Wilson, Cabinet Member for
Finance and Performance who highlighted that:
 This report provided Cabinet with an overview of finance and
performance for quarter four (Q4) of 2018/19.
 The report presented budget and performance information together
in a single report for Cabinet to review. In terms of format,
information was presented according to the new organisational
structure from 1 February 2019.
 The General Fund was overspent by £1.5m with the Housing
Revenue Account being balanced.
 There was improvement compared to quarter three, but there were
still a large number of areas that were identified as “red”. For each
“red” indicator there was an action plan to address the issues.
 Future budget and performance reports would be presented and
aligned with the Borough Plan outcomes, this would enable the
Council to ensure effective delivery on the Borough plan
recommendations.

Cabinet Members made the following comments and observations:
 Pressures of £2.2m relating to overspends on temporary
accommodation (TA) B&B costs were managed in year by higher
than budgeted income of £2m. The pressure on TA was due to the
impact of austerity and people falling into the poverty trap which
was created by the current Conservative Government.
 Recycling on estates was a challenge and a number of initiatives
were being explored to tackling the issue.
 Payments to Small and Medium sized business had improved and
Cabinet hoped this continued as delayed payments really affected

Page 4
small businesses.
RESOLVED:
Performance for Quarter 4 of 2019/20, including the Key Performance
Indicators
(KPIs) that have been highlighted as being of concern were noted.
6.

FINANCIAL PLANNING AND MEDIUM TERM STRATEGY REPORT
2019/20 TO 2023/24
The report was introduced by Councillor Andy Wilson, Cabinet Member for
Finance and Performance who highlighted that:







In February Council approved the budget during a significant
period of uncertainty.
Currently, the government in Westminster was a still disorganised,
no majority, a Brexit plan that was not fit for purpose with no
alternative. The Council also face sustained demographic
challenges, rising costs of social care and a complete lack of clarity
on future financing of local government.
The Council had long argued about the impact of austerity and the
need for proper funding of public services. The scale of funding
uncertainty was why Cabinet rejected the opposition calls to use
the reserves to keep funding spending.
Money that was put into reserves would not cover the financial
pressures in children’s services that this council faced. Nine out of
ten local authorities spent more than their budget last year on
children’s services and the LGA estimates that the shortfall this
year is £1.1 billion pounds.

In response to questions from Cabinet, Hamant Bharadia, Director of
Finance and Property advised that, the current budget had already taken
into account the pay rise for schools that was announced the previous
day. However, if there was any increase above inflation further savings
would need to be identified.
RESOLVED:
1) That the change to the funding deficit as set out in Table 3, and the
consequent amendment to the Council’s Medium Term Financial
Strategy, be approved.
2) The Council’s commitment to delivering the agreed revenue
savings planned for 2020/21 (£15.64m) and 2021/22 to 2022/23 of
(£22.02m), as set out in Table 3, be re-affirmed.
3) That the key risks set out in paragraphs 2.18 to 2.37 be noted.
4) The 2018/19 General Fund outturn overspend of £1.526m as
confirmed in Table 4 paragraph 2.38 be noted.
5) The 2018/19 Housing Revenue Account outturn is on budget as
confirmed in Table 5 paragraph 2.45 be noted.
6) The capital investment outturn of £162.72m against the 2018/19

Page 5
budget of £230.65m as detailed in paragraphs 3.1 to 3.2 and
Appendix 3 be noted.
7) The changes to the three year Capital Investment Programme for
the period 2019/20 to 2021/22 as set out in paragraphs 3.6 to 3.10
and summarised in Appendix 1 were noted.
7.

LAMBETH'S BOROUGH PLAN REVIEW
The report was introduced by Councillor Jenny Brathwaite, Deputy Leader
and Hannah Jameson, Head of Policy and Partnerships, they highlighted:
Since the Borough Plan was first published in 2016, the context in which
the public sector was operating had changed. In 2010 the government set
out a plan to eliminate the deficit primarily through public expenditure
reductions. Lower than predicted rates of economic growth has meant that
the deficit target was unlikely to be achieved until the mid-2020s, meaning
the period of highly constrained public spending continued.
Our annual public health report (2018) shows that the average healthy life
expectancy for adult males has reduced by 6.8 years since 2011-13. This
is just one illustration of the rising demand facing public services.
Lambeth’s Borough Plan set out our approach to meeting this challenge.
In response to questions from Cabinet Members, the Head of Strategy and
Partnerships advised that:
 Lambeth first partnership board were involved in developing the
Borough Plan and they would have an ongoing role in monitoring
and evaluating outcomes. There were a range of other
partnerships (VCS, HWB) that would also be involved.
 As we developed our growth strategy, we would continue to
engage with businesses more in our objectives.
 A review of the borough plan measures would take place over the
next six months to ensure that they enable us to effectively
measure our impact.

RESOLVED:
That the proposed Borough Plan goals be approved.
That the next steps in developing, adopting and implementing the Borough
Plan be agreed.
The meeting ended at 6.35 pm
CHAIR
CABINET
Monday 16 September 2019
Date of Despatch: Friday 26 July 2019
Call-in Date: Friday 2 August 2019
Contact for Enquiries: Sam Bailey
Tel: 020 7926 0029
Fax: (020) 7926 2361
E-mail: sbailey3@lambeth.gov.uk
Web: www.lambeth.gov.uk

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 7

Agenda Item 3

Cabinet 16 September 2019
Report title: Lambeth Children’s Homes Redress Scheme Update
Wards: All
Portfolio: Councillor Jack Hopkins – Leader of the Council
Report Authorised by: Christina Thompson, Interim Strategic Director for Finance & Investment
Contacts for enquiries: Mark Nicolson, Head of Risk & Insurance, 0207 926 9305,
mnicolson@lambeth.gov.uk

Report summary
This report provides Cabinet with an update on the performance of the Lambeth Children’s Homes Redress
Scheme (the Scheme) as at the end of June 2019. The Scheme has been operational for a period of
eighteen months during which time a total of 1,250 applications have been received. A steady number of
new applications continue to be received each month.
When the Scheme was launched it was anticipated that the Independent Inquiry into Child Sexual Abuse
(IICSA) public hearings of children in the care of Lambeth would have taken place before the Scheme
closing date. The Lambeth hearings are now expected to take place between April and November 2020
and publication of the IICSA report sometime in 2021. The Lambeth Inquiry and subsequent Report are
likely to generate increased publicity and awareness resulting in further applicants coming forward. The
Council is keen to ensure that as many people as possible are able to make an application through the
Scheme and therefore this report contains a recommendation for Cabinet to extend the closing date of the
Scheme for a further period of two years which will mean that the closing date will be 1 January 2022.
As at the end of June 2019 over £16 million has been paid in redress compensation directly to applicants.
This is comprised of £9.9 million paid in Harm’s Way payments, £5.1 million paid in further Individual
Redress payments and £1.1 million on applications over the Scheme limit of £125,000. Almost 43% of all
applications that have been received to date have been processed to the stage where applicants have
received all of the financial redress that is due to them. Of the total amount paid in redress and legal costs
over 83% has been paid directly to applicants in compensation. In addition to financial redress 169 letters
of apology have been prepared and sent to applicants with 13 applicants so far having taken up the offer
of a meeting with a senior representative of the Council.
Continued efforts have been made to raise awareness of the Scheme to the families and carers of those
that were resident in one of the four homes for children with disabilities with 21 applications having now
been received. National and international advertising of the Scheme has also continued throughout the
last six months and the Council has written to a number of UK representatives of countries whose
nationals/residents may have an interest in making an application to the Scheme.
1

Page 8
Operational procedures of the Scheme have been further reviewed and a number of improvements have
been implemented following feedback from applicants and their representatives. This has included looking
at all open applications to see if they can be progressed, identifying potential processing bottlenecks,
removing these and liaising with applicant solicitors to move cases forward. Interim redress payments
have been offered to eligible applicants to ensure that applicants receive some of their compensation
sooner. Further details of these and other improvements are included in this report.

Finance summary
The Council received initial independent actuarial advice in assessing the cost and value for money of
operating the Scheme which was also subjected to a peer review by a second actuarial firm who confirmed
that the assumptions made in the original report were reasonable. A further actuarial review was
undertaken after the first year of operation and the financial forecast was revised (based on available data
at that time) to an estimated Scheme cost of £100 million (including applications over the Scheme limit).
The actuary has again reviewed the data as at eighteen months of the Scheme operation and suggests
that based on the experience to date that the revised cost estimate for the Scheme (for the period 2
January 2018 to 1 January 2020) could be expected to be somewhere between £65 to £80 million.
As at the end of June 2019 the total Scheme expenditure to date is c£22 million. This comprises of £16.1
million paid in redress to applicants, £3.3 million on both applicant’s and the Council’s legal costs of
processing applications and £2.6 million on other costs including rehabilitation & therapy for applicant’s,
cost of instructing medical experts and social work chronology and also on administrative costs including
staffing.
The outstanding costs as at June 2019 (i.e. those redress payments, legal and associated disbursement
costs that have not yet been paid in respect of all applications received as at the end of June) is c£29
million plus a further estimated £2 million for Scheme administration and staffing. This means that the total
estimated incurred cost of the Scheme as at June 2019 is c£53 million (£22 million paid + £29 million
outstanding + £2 million estimated administration).
Given the latest financial forecast for the first two years of the Scheme, it is considered that the proposed
two year extension of the Scheme can still be contained within the original forecast of £100 million. It is
likely that the number of new applications received during the extension period would be less than those
already received to date due to the extensive publicity and work of the Shirley Oaks Survivors Association
and the Council that has already been undertaken to date.
The Council has already secured a capitalisation direction from the Government to borrow up to £100
million needed to fund the Scheme.

Recommendations
1.

To note the contents of this report and in particular the amendments to the Scheme process made
as a result of survivors and stakeholder feedback.

2.

To approve a two year extension with a revised closing date of 1 January 2022 for applications to
be received.

3.

To receive a report to Cabinet in April 2020 to consider the performance of the Scheme as at the
end of the first two years of operation.

2

Page 9
1.

CONTEXT

1.1

This report follows on from the previous updates on the operation and performance of the Scheme
that have been reported to Cabinet on 17 September 2018 and 1 April 2019. This report presents
an update on the operation and performance of the Scheme as at 30 June 2019 for Cabinet to
review.

1.2

The Scheme was opened on 2 January 2018 to provide a mechanism for compensating survivors of
sexual, physical and psychological abuse suffered at the borough homes which were open from the
1930s until the 1990s. The Scheme is open to new applications up until 1 January 2020, however a
proposal is contained within this Cabinet report to extend the closing date for new applications until
1 January 2022.

1.3

In addition to financial compensation, eligible applicants to the Scheme are also entitled to receive
a formal letter of apology from the Council, a meeting with a senior officer, access to advisory
services and the provision of free personalised counselling support. In addition to counselling support
available under the Scheme, the Council has a free specialist and dedicated independent counselling
support service for all survivors available through Oxleas NHS Trust.

1.4

A summary of the redress available under the Scheme is attached at Appendix A.

1.5

Applicants to the Scheme are not required to obtain a copy of their social care records before making
a redress application. However all applicants are reminded that they are entitled to apply for a copy
of their records at any time if they have not already done so. This can be done by completing the
relevant form which can be found by visiting the Lambeth Council website www.lambeth.gov.uk and
searching for ‘Subject Access Request’.

2.

PROPOSAL AND REASONS

2.1

2.2

Summary and Index
A copy of the redress Scheme performance dashboard as at 30 June 2019 is attached to this report
at Appendix B. This performance dashboard provides a more detailed analysis of the performance
information that is summarised in this report.
The index below provides a summary of the performance information and updates contained within
this report and the paragraph that this information can be found in to make it easier to locate a
specific subject area:

Subject area

Report
paragrap
h

Processing improvements
Applicant solicitor behaviours
Applications received
Applicant types
Application processing
Application status
Periods of residency
Locations
Specialist units
Harm’s Way payments
Individual Redress payments

2.3 – 2.4
2.5 – 2.7
2.8 – 2.9
2.10 – 2.11
2.12 – 2.19
2.20 – 2.24
2.25 – 2.29
2.30 – 2.32
2.33 – 2.36
2.37 – 2.37
2.38 – 2.40

Subject area
Legal costs
Average legal costs by solicitor
Appeals
Non-financial Redress
Counselling service
Engagement & advertising
Stakeholder feedback and review
Aggravated damages
Scheme extension
Access to records
Update on IICSA
3

Report
paragraph
2.41 – 2.45
2.46 – 2.47
2.48 – 2.50
2.51 – 2.53
2.54 – 2.56
2.57 – 2.59
2.60 – 2.63
2.64 – 2.68
2.69 – 2.74
2.75 – 2.77
2.78 – 2.82

Page 10

2.3

Application processing improvements
Since the previous report to Cabinet in April 2019 and the feedback received from survivors and their
solicitors, the redress team and Scheme solicitors, Kennedys LLP, have undertaken a detailed
analysis of all open applications to identify whether there are any areas (within our control) where
improvements can be made or where applications can be progressed quicker and also any
opportunities for improving the application process. This has included:















2.4

Undertaking a weekly review of all applications that have been opened for over six months to
ensure these are progressing as smoothly as possible;
Meeting or liaising with applicant solicitors to understand where any bottle-necks in the
Scheme administration are arising and how best to resolve these through process
improvements where possible;
At the request of applicant solicitors, additional consultant psychiatrists have been added to
the pool of Scheme experts in order to ensure that applicants are seen more quickly. Dr
Davies and Dr O’Neil have recently been added at the suggestion of Applicant solicitors;
Agreeing a fixed price solution with applicant solicitors with regard to preparing social work
chronologies in response to previous concerns raised by applicant solicitors – this does not
create any financial saving over the previous process but is expected to reduce duplication;
Offering interim Individual Redress payments to applicants to ensure that they have access
to compensation more quickly – this does not alter the overall total value of redress an
applicant receives just that they receive it in two payments rather than one at the end of the
process;
Accepting that for applicants who live overseas and do not feel able to participate in a Skype
appointment with a Scheme expert that a psychiatrist in their country of residence can, in
certain circumstances, be instructed;
Allocated a dedicated resource to assist with the payments process ensuring that Harm’s Way
and Individual Redress payments are made to applicants as quickly as possible;
Reviewed and amended our internal processes and documents for the verification process to
avoid duplication and speed up the time taken to conduct verification checks; and,
Created a new workflow to deal more efficiently with the increased flow of invoicing from
applicant solicitors to ensure that applicant payments paid via their solicitor are processed as
quickly as possible.

In addition to the above, a number of other changes and improvements to the operational processing
of applications have been implemented as summarised below:








Applicants are now offered a choice of three appointments with three different medical Scheme
experts rather than just one appointment being offered;
In appropriate circumstances medical examinations can take place at an applicant’s home
and/or a location that minimises travel time and inconvenience to an applicant;
In partnership with the National Association for People Abused in Childhood (NAPAC) have
reviewed our correspondence to applicants in person to ensure that the information is easier
to understand;
Have amended our acknowledgement letters to remind applicants of their right to request their
social care records and the process for doing so;
Improved our verification process to ensure checks for available files and records are
undertaken more efficiently
Providing a choice of where individuals can access counselling , either through Oxleas or
closer to where people live
4

Page 11




2.5

2.6

Applicant solicitor behaviours
The Council recognises the impact that any delay to the processing of applications has on applicants
and seeks to avoid or reduce these wherever possible. It is also recognised that an applicant may
have completed an application form some time before it is actually submitted and received by the
Council for processing. We remind applicant solicitors of their role in assisting to manage the
expectations of applicants particularly in relation to when information is received by the solicitor and
then provided to the Council.
Although the Council has made a number of improvements to the process it is important to point out
that there are a number of issues relating to applicant solicitors that have been observed that
contribute to delays in the processing of applications. These include:














2.7

2.8

Introduced verification monitoring tools to track where each application is in the process in real
time and providing updates to the redress file handlers;
Undertaking regular reviews of open applications and weekly monitoring discussions with the
Scheme solicitors to identify any blockages and how these may be moved forward; and,
Compiling a set of criteria where the Council would consider the funding of Personal Injury
Trusts in order to protect an Applicant’s means tested benefits following receipt of
compensation under the Scheme.

Not providing further/full details or information about aspects of an application when requested;
Delay in providing evidence or further evidence when requested, sometimes running into
several months;
Delay in providing witness statements, in some cases these are outstanding for over six
months
Delay in forwarding medical records for consideration;
Making requests for unredacted social care records and not accepting that this is not
something that the Scheme can provide;
Attempts to redefine the scope and ambit of the Scheme;
Treating applications as if they are civil claims and arguing legal points rather than recognising
that the Scheme is an alternative dispute resolution process;
Not agreeing to the instruction of Willis Palmer to undertake social records chronology (now
resolved by allowing applicant solicitors to undertake this work at a fixed cost);
Medical expert appointments being offered and then the slot being allowed to lapse;
Applicants not attending medical appointments or cancelling at the last minute meaning the
appointment has to be re-arranged for a future date;
Lack of response to offers and/or correspondence from the redress team and Scheme
solicitors
Offers of redress made and outstanding for over six months – sometimes applicant solicitors
are without instruction from their client; and,
Delay in providing a cost bill at the end of the process.

All of the above have led to some applications not progressing for significant periods of time. In
addition the redress team is often contacted by applicants for an update on their application advising
that they haven’t received any update from their solicitor or have been unable to get hold of them.
These issues can all add to the frustration felt by applicants that their claim isn’t being progressed
by the Redress team.
Applications received
During the first eighteen months a total of 1,250 applications have been submitted for consideration
under the Scheme. The number of new applications received each month has fallen from the peak
5

Page 12
levels seen last year, however a steady number of new applications continues to be received at
around 30 to 40 per month.
2.9

The vast majority of applications, over 94%, have been received from applicants that are residing in
the United Kingdom. Over 50% of those applicants reside in the greater London area. There have
been a total of 208 applications (17% of the total) from applicants residing within the borough of
Lambeth. The remaining applications have been received from various other countries.

Applicant types
2.10 The vast majority of applicants (88%) are legally represented in submitting their application through
the Scheme. There are 28 separate firms of solicitors that are representing applicants with both their
Harm’s Way and Individual Redress applications.
2.11 Individuals are also able to submit an application to the Scheme in person and these are referred to
as ‘Applicants in Person’. Currently 12% of applicants have elected to handle their own applications.
Applicants are reminded of their right to legal representation and advised that their reasonable costs
of this are covered under the Scheme. Applicants are also signposted to where they can obtain
further information in relation to legal representation. For applicants who don’t wish to be legally
represented a protocol is in place to minimise any potential distress, simplify and explain the process
as far as practically possible.
Application processing
2.12 The processing of financial redress to applicants is undertaken over two stages. The first stage is
the determination of whether an applicant is eligible under the Scheme (verification) and then making
the appropriate level of Harm’s Way Payment to all eligible applicants. The second stage is
determining the value of any Individual Redress payment that has been applied for and making
payment of this to the applicant. The table below details the two stages and the average processing
times as at June 2019:

Stage 1
Verification of application &
Harm’s Way Payment

Stage 2
Individual Redress Payment

Current average processing time from receipt of
application to the Harm’s Way Payment to
applicant
2 months






Receiving & setting up new applications.
Verification & confirmation of an applicant’s
placement in a Lambeth Children’s home
Determination of eligibility for Harm’s Way
Payment
Making the Harm’s Way Payment to eligible
applicants
Payment of fixed legal costs to legal
representatives

Current average processing time from end of Stage 1
to the Individual Redress Payment to applicant
7.5 months



Review of relevant documentation, evidence,
medical records & care records
Assessment of injury & appropriate compensation
to be paid to reflect the severity of abuse suffered
Assessment of any consequential hurt, fear and
humiliation an eligible applicant has experienced
and the lifetime consequences the abuse has
caused.
Liaison with applicant’s solicitors, medical experts
& others
Making Interim redress payments to eligible
applicants
Making final redress payments to applicants







6

Page 13
2.13 The average time taken to verify an applicant and process their Harm’s Way Payment is two months
(44 working days) from the date that the application is received by the Council until the date that the
Harm’s Way Payment is made. It should be noted that some applicants may have actually completed
an application form sometime earlier and handed this to their representative as it is sometimes noted
that the date on the form is much earlier than the date actually received by the Council.
2.14 Over 80% of Harm’s Way applications have been processed in three months or less. Those
applications that have taken longer than three months have been due to various reasons including
insufficient or missing information provided as part of an application, being unable to verify an
applicant, and awaiting on an applicant providing further information.
2.15 In some cases such as where an applicant needs to obtain further records from the London
Metropolitan archives or another local authority this can take a considerable period of time. Upon
receipt of the additional information at a later date the processing of the application can be continued.
2.16 The processing of Individual Redress Payments (stage 2) is more complex and involves obtaining
and considering documentation from many different sources including social care and medical
records. This stage can also involve obtaining further expert medical evidence. On those applications
where an Individual Redress payment has been determined and paid this has taken an average of
seven and a half months. It is important to point out that whilst applicants are not expected to prove
their case because the Council has accepted liability in terms of the abuse they were subjected to,
the Council does need details of the nature of the abuse and the effect that it has had on the applicant
in order to assess the correct level of compensation payable to each individual. In this respect no
two claims will be identical.
2.17 The overall processing time for an applicant claiming both a Harm’s Way and Individual Redress
payment is nine and a half months from receipt of their completed application to the date that the
final redress payment is made to the applicant. This is quicker than the equivalent processing time
for civil claims which take significantly longer and can take a number of years to conclude.
2.18 Eighteen months into the operation of the Scheme, almost 43% of the total number of applications
received have been processed through to the end of stage 2 meaning that all the financial redress
due to these applicants has now been paid to them.
2.19 Once all of the financial redress has been paid to an applicant the application moves into a stage 3
process which is where all of the final legal costs are then paid to the applicant’s solicitors and the
Council’s own costs are concluded. There may also be some elements of non-financial redress that
have been requested and are still being finalised at this stage. Once all of these have been finalised
an application will be marked as ‘closed’ denoting that there are no further costs outstanding against
the application.
Application status
2.20 As at the end of June 2019 the processing status of applications is shown in the table below:
Application Status

Total number of
applications

Stage 1
Verification & Harm’s Way Payment
still being determined
Stage 2
7

Applications
as a %

70

5%

639

51%

Page 14
Individual Redress payment still
being determined
Stage 3
All HWP and IRP paid to applicants –
legal costs being finalised
Closed applications
Finalised and closed – Redress and
legal costs paid
Over Scheme limit applications

101

8%

433

35%

7
1,250

1%
100%

2.21 A more detailed analysis of the status of applications is included at KPI 3 in the Redress Scheme
June performance dashboard which is attached to this report at Appendix B.
2.22 There have been a total of 47 applications (3.8% of total applications) that have not been accepted
into the Scheme due to not meeting the relevant Scheme criteria. In addition there are a further three
applications that have not been accepted and are currently pending an appeal. The reason for
applications not being accepted is shown in the table below:
Reason redress application not
accepted into Scheme
Unable to verify applicant
Not placed in a Lambeth children’s home
Threshold not met for Harm’s Way
Abuse occurred whilst in foster care
Total

Total number
of applications
25
18
6
1
50

2.23 In all cases where applicants have been advised that their application has not met the relevant
criteria the applicant is reminded of their right to appeal the Council’s decision. Applicants are also
reminded of their right to seek legal advice (if not already represented) and are assisted with
signposting to other organisations that may be able to assist them in locating records.
2.24 Individuals that suffered abuse whilst only in foster care are not eligible to submit an application
under the Scheme, they may however be entitled to make a civil claim. All individuals are advised to
seek independent legal advice around this. Any subsequent compensation claims received will be
dealt with in accordance with the usual civil process.
Periods of residency
2.25 Just under half of the applications received to date (45.1%) relate to applicants where they first
entered (were resident for the first time) a children’s home pre 1965 (these are homes for which
Lambeth assumed responsibility in 1965 from London County Council).
2.26 Some applicants were resident in a home pre 1965 and would still have been resident when
responsibility for the home transferred to Lambeth Council in April 1965. Other applicants may have
been resident in a home for a period of time pre 1965 and then again for a separate period(s) post
1965.
2.27 The chart below details the years that applicants were first placed at a Lambeth children’s home:

8

Page 15

2.28 The earliest recorded date of an eligible applicant being placed in a children’s home (that
subsequently transferred to Lambeth in 1965) is in 1933 with the latest being recorded as 1994 (there
are a few applications where applicants have stated they first went into care in the early 2000’s
however these have subsequently not met the Scheme criteria and have not been accepted).
2.29 The numbers of applications received relating to residency in children’s homes in the 1980’s and
1990’s is low in comparison to earlier years. This is because Shirley Oaks closed in 1983 and after
the mid 1980’s the number of children that were placed in those Lambeth Children’s homes that
were still operational had reduced significantly. Over 40% of children’s homes had closed by the end
of 1989 and only 6% of homes were still in operation after 1995.
Locations
2.30 The majority of applications received to date (60%) relate to incidents that occurred within Shirley
Oaks. However this number has decreased from the figure of 72% reported as at the end of the first
year. In contrast new applications from applicants resident in other Lambeth children’s homes seem
to remain stable.
2.31 South Vale Assessment Centre/Children’s Home accounts for 15% of applications followed by
Woodvale at 3%.
2.32 A list of those children’s homes that were run by Lambeth or its predecessor authority is attached at
Appendix C.
Specialist units
2.33 There were four former children’s homes for children with disabilities that were managed by the
Council. These homes were open for varying lengths of time between 1976 and 2000, and were
often referred to by different names. The four homes for children with disabilities are:





Ivy House / Warham Road / Rose House (‘Ivy House’);
Monkton Street Children’s Home (‘Monkton Street’);
Leigham Court Road Children’s Home (‘Leigham Court Road’); and,
Chestnut Road / Robson Road Children’s Home (‘Chestnut Road’).

2.34 An eligible applicant who was resident as a child at one of the above homes for children with
disabilities is not required to provide written evidence in support of their application for a Harm’s Way
Payment (they are however still required to complete an application form) and will upon verification
of their placement receive a Harm’s Way Payment of £10,000 regardless of the length of time they
were resident in the home.
9

Page 16
2.35 We have established a Special Unit Project Board involving legal, redress and social work that meets
on a fortnightly basis. The board has considered 60 people, of these we have been unsuccessful in
locating 8 people and their whereabouts is unknown and 4 people are deceased. Contact has been
made with the adult or their representative for 38. Of these 13 applications have been made and a
further 9 are awaiting input from legal representatives and/or families. We have placed 3 applications
on hold due to wellbeing concerns, but will revisit these at a later date to assess whether the person
is in a position to engage.
2.36 Some of the people who are part of the specialist unit cohort do not have representation from family
of lawyers, further to this they lack the mental capacity to advocate for themselves or instruct lawyers.
For this group we are following the process as laid out in the Mental Capacity Act 2005 statutory
guidance. Namely appointing an independent advocate to represent the person's interests when
making a best interests decision to proceed with applications to the Redress scheme. Further to
this, the advocate would be able to instruct a lawyer if this was felt to be in their best interests, for
example in order to set up a trust fund
Harm’s Way Payments
2.37 After eighteen months of Scheme operation a total of 1,101 Harm’s Way Payments have been made
totalling £9.8 million. The breakdown of these payments is shown in the table below:

No. of
verified
payments

Harm's Way payments
£1,000 - less than 1 week
£2,500 - more than 1 week up to 3
months
£5,000 - between 3 and 6 months
£10,000 - more than 6 months
Total Harm's Way payments

Total
amount paid
(£)
3

3,000

100
70
928

250,000
350,000
9,280,000

1,101

9,883,000

Individual Redress Payments
2.38 After eighteen months of Scheme operation a total of 250 Individual Redress Payments have been
made totalling £5.1 million (this total is in addition to the total Harm’s Way Payments). A breakdown
of the Individual Redress Payments that have been made is shown in the table below:

Individual Redress payments

No. of
verified
payments

Total
amount paid
(£)

Interim Individual Redress Payment
Band 1
Band 2
Band 3
Band 1 (Plus Band 4)
Band 2 (Plus Band 4)
Band 3 (Plus Band 4)

46
72
66
21
5
20
20

564,000
616,950
1,252,823
837,700
93,000
537,130
1,256,650

Total Individual Redress payments

250

5,158,253

2.39 In addition to the above payments a further £1.1 million has been paid in respect of those applications
that have exceeded the Scheme limit (over £125,000).
10

Page 17
2.40 Of the total paid in redress and legal costs to date 83% has gone directly to applicants as shown
below:

Amount
Paid (£)

Payment type
Paid to Applicants
(HWP, IRP & over £125k)
Council’s Legal costs
Applicant’s Legal costs
Total

Percentage
%

16,131,703

83%

1,459,475
1,873,565
19,464,743

7%
10%
100%

Legal costs
2.41 In addition to the compensation that is paid to applicants, there are also applicants and the Council’s
legal costs associated with the processing of applications. The Council’s own legal costs are paid
on a monthly basis in respect of those applications on which the Scheme solicitors have worked on
during that month. Applicants’ legal costs are concluded at the finalisation of the application once all
redress has been paid to the applicant, except for the payment of the Harm’s Way fixed fee and any
interim payment on costs paid at the medical referral stage.
2.42 The total value of legal costs paid as at the end of June 2019 on those applications that have been
fully settled and closed is shown in the table below:

Closed Applications
(Both applicant and Council’s legal
costs paid)

Number of
Applicatio
ns

Settled redress applications*

Council’s
own legal
costs paid
(£)

Applicants
legal costs
paid (£)

433

353,839

739,258

Settled applications over £125,000

5

81,777

261,000

Total closed/settled applications

438

435,616

1,000,258

*This includes all applications that have been settled including HWP only, IRP less than HWP
and withdrawn & not accepted applications.

2.43 As shown above the value of the Council’s own legal costs of £435,616 (30%) on closed applications
is significantly lower than those costs that have been paid to the applicants’ solicitors of £1,000,258
(70%) for the same applications. The hourly rates charged by the Council’s solicitors are significantly
lower than the equivalent hourly rates for applicants’ solicitors. The cost comparison on these closed
applications is the most relevant as all costs have been paid with none outstanding.
2.44 There are a number of applications where the applicant has received all of their financial redress but
the Council is yet to receive the final bill for legal costs from their solicitors. Where these costs have
been outstanding for over a month we are reminding the solicitors of the need to submit their legal
costs bill in a timely manner in order to fully conclude the matter. In addition there are costs that have
been received from the applicant solicitors where it is considered that the costs submitted are
excessive and/or include elements of costs that are not accepted. In these cases attempts are made
11

Page 18
to negotiate with applicant solicitors to agree a more reasonable costs bill that is proportionate to the
nature of dealing with a Scheme application under an alternative dispute resolution process. Where
agreement cannot be reached these costs cases will proceed to appeal for determination.
2.45 The total value of all legal costs that have been paid at the eighteen month stage (both on closed
and open applications) is £3.3 million comprising of £1.4 million for the Council’s own costs and £1.9
million for applicants solicitors.
Average legal costs by solicitor
2.46 The following table highlights the total and average legal costs that have been paid to solicitors in
respect of Individual Redress settlements only, on closed applications where all legal costs have
been concluded:
Breakdown of Settled IRP applications with Legal Costs paid
Number of
IRP
IRP Legal Costs as % of Average IRP
Applicants' legal representation
IRP
settlement
Costs (£) IRP settlement
Paid (£)
(KPI 7b)
settlement
Paid (£)
5
807,450
248,652
31%
161,490
Imran Khan & Partners
3
209,300
63,920
31%
69,767
Bolt Burdon Solicitors
4
108,000
32,550
30%
27,000
Hudgell Solicitors
29
728,980
164,764
23%
25,137
Verisona Law
25
788,180
157,560
20%
31,527
Switalskis Solicitors
26
761,780
145,936
19%
29,299
Birnberg Peirce Limited
7
331,159
37,071
11%
47,308
Slater & Gordon Solicitors
4
95,000
19,125
20%
23,750
Others*
Total Applicant Solicitors
103
3,829,849
869,578
23%
37,183
Kennedys Solicitors
103
3,829,849
303,864
8%
37,183
*Solicitor firms have been grouped together as 'Others' as numbers are too low to list separately.

Average
Costs (£)
49,730
21,307
8,138
5,682
6,302
5,613
5,296
4,781
8,443
2,950

2.47 The data in the above table represents only those Individual Redress applications that have been
finalised and where all legal costs have been paid for both the applicant’s and THE Council’s
solicitors (excluding any Harm’s Way fixed fee costs). The data also includes all applications
including those over £125,000 that have been concluded. It does not include any applicants in
person.
Scheme appeals
2.48 As at the end of June a total of 16 appeals have been received of which 8 have already been
determined or withdrawn, and 8 that are still awaiting determination by the appeal panel. The first
appeals on the value of Individual redress payment and on applicant’s legal costs have now been
received and will be determined by the full panel of three members. The first of these appeals is
scheduled to be heard in September 2019.
2.49 The table below details the numbers of appeals that have been received in each category and the
status of each as at eighteen months:

Appeal category
Eligibility
Level of Harm’s Way
Payment
Level of Redress Payment

Numb
er of
Appea
ls

Percent
age of
Appeal
s

10

63%

1

1

6%

2

12%

12

Appeals
Appeals
allowed dismissed
(success (unsucces
ful)
sful)

Appeal
s
withdra
wn

Appeal
s
pendin
g

5

1

3

0

0

1

0

0

0

0

2

Page 19
Level of applicant Legal
Costs

3

19%

0

0

0

3

Total number of appeals

16

100%

1

5

2

8

2.50 The majority of appeals that have been received to date have been in relation to eligibility matters,
more recently there are appeals coming forward on the level of redress payment and applicant legal
costs.
Non-financial redress
2.51 The Scheme offers applicants the opportunity to access a number of non-financial redress benefits
such as a letter of apology, a meeting with a senior representative of the Council, access to a
counselling service and access to specialist advice and help with issues including housing, welfare,
benefits, further education and employment.
2.52 At the time of writing a total of 169 letters of apology have been requested and sent to applicants.
The number of requests for apology letters continues to increase as more applications are settled.
A total of 13 meetings with a senior representative of the Council have also taken place after being
requested by applicants. In addition to this over 40 referrals have been made for applicants
requesting access to advisory services.
2.53 Applicants are reminded at various stages of the non-financial redress that is available to them as
part of their application, and are further reminded at the point their final redress payments are made.
Counselling service
2.54 The Council has had a free specialist and dedicated independent counselling support service for all
survivors since 2015. The Council is continuing to fund this counselling service for the duration of
the Scheme.
2.55 Feedback from both users and providers of the counselling service is that they would prefer more
flexible access to counselling, particularly for those who do not live in London or may have mobility
or other issues that mean that cannot easily access the current provider. The current provider already
engages in innovative delivery options by telephone, mobile technology and online to enable flexible
access for those individuals who feel this is helpful.
2.56 In addition to the above offer the Council has agreed to fund private counselling from a professionally
qualified and registered counsellor or therapist providing this has been recommended by an
applicant’s GP or other appropriately qualified clinician in circumstances where the need for
counselling has arisen out of an individual’s abusive experiences in a Lambeth Children’s Home.
Engagement & advertising
2.57 Since the commencement of the Scheme the Council has run various advertising campaigns to raise
awareness of and promote the Scheme to potential applicants. National advertising has taken place
through adverts placed in the Metro as the UK newspaper with the biggest distribution, and also in
other national newspapers. In addition to this, adverts were placed in targeted publications in
London, Kent and the south coast of England as well as in a number of specialist and professional
publications based on feedback received from the community and information on the distribution of
existing applicants. This included adverts in some international publications.
2.58 In addition to the above advertising, the Council has also written to more than 50 charities and third
sector groups outlining details of the Scheme, sharing the application form and associated guide.
We have asked the groups to share and promote the information with relevant parties to ensure they
13

Page 20
are made aware of the Scheme. We have also written to the UK representatives (ambassadors and
high commissioners) of a number of countries whose nationals/residents may have an interest in
submitting an application through the redress scheme. We have asked these representatives to
assist in raising awareness of the Scheme within their respective countries.
2.59 Dedicated webpages provide a wide range of information about the Scheme and the webpages and
information has recently been updated having been reviewed by an independent consultant. An
application guide, application form and copy of the Scheme are all available to download from the
website. Details of the website can be found here:
https://www.lambeth.gov.uk/redress
Stakeholder feedback and review
2.60 The Council has appointed an independent external expert to gain insight into survivors’ experiences
of engaging with the Scheme, and to examine what further work can be undertaken to encourage
and build confidence in others who have not yet come forward to apply. Applicants that have
concluded their applications within the Scheme have been invited to provide their feedback through
a variety of engagement methods with the independent expert. The information received from this
process has been used to inform changes to the Scheme process/administration particularly in
relation to how we communicate with applicants.
2.61 Concerns were raised at the last Cabinet meeting about the level of settlement offers being made
by the Council’s solicitors and of low offers being made which were later increased. In order to assess
the effectiveness and approach taken by the Scheme solicitors, Kennedys LLP, to the making of
redress settlement offers and the settlement of applications the Council instructed a barrister who is
an expert in sexual abuse litigation to undertake a review of a random selection of settled
applications. The barrister selected a total of 53 concluded applications to review the approach taken
by Kennedys and the relevance of the financial redress offers made on these. A copy of the executive
summary of the audit is attached at Appendix D.
2.62 The following is a summary of the conclusions that were noted from the barristers’ audit review:
Evidence provided by applicants – It was noted that it was common for not a lot of detail or
evidence to be provided in applications in the first instance but for the evidence to be supplemented
by further particulars at a later date. It was noted that where offers of redress were made but
subsequently not accepted that Kennedys always pointed out in correspondence that they would be
happy to consider any additional evidence if it was provided.
Evidence provided in a piecemeal nature – The barrister noted that the full picture of abuse in
terms of its nature, frequency and effects would often not emerge until later in the process rather
than in the early stages of an application.
Analysis of the evidence – It was noted that the thought process of the file handlers at Kennedys
were clearly set out and well documented and that it was possible to clearly see the analysis applied
to the evidence as it evolved and to understand the basis upon which redress offers had been
assessed, and where appropriate reassessed, with reference to the different compensation bands.
The barrister notes that evidence presented by applicants was taken at face value and there were
no instances of case handlers being judgemental on the grounds of credibility or any other basis.
The case handlers have adopted a generous interpretation of the facts in favour of the applicants
when selecting the appropriate compensation band and range.
14

Page 21
Approach to the quantification of applications – The barrister notes that the correspondence and
telephone discussions between the parties around the issues of quantification were without
exception conducted on a non-combative collaborative process. It is further noted that the two main
reasons for redress offers being increased from their starting point or initial offer was the provision
of further evidence later on which suggested either a greater frequency of abuse than previously
indicated and/or which suggested definite psychological effects not mentioned in initial information.
Stages at which redress offers were made – The barrister acknowledges that in some applications
the Council was invited to make offers without necessity to obtain medical evidence and in other
cases applicants wanted to wait to be medically examined.
Applicants in person – it was noted that there were a number of positive points identified by the
Kennedys files handlers in their interaction with applicants such as reminding them of their right to
legal advice paid for by the Council, provided with careful explanations of the working of the Scheme
and the process, advised no pressure to accept offers and could take time, advised they could submit
further evidence or counter offers, signposted to support services where appropriate.
2.63 The Council has continued to engage with applicant solicitors to discuss operational matters related
to the Scheme and to discuss issues on particular cases with a view to moving these forward through
the process. Not all applicant solicitors have taken up the offer to meet to discuss the operation of
the Scheme.
Aggravated Damages
2.64 The Council has been asked to clarify and explain the basis upon which applicants are compensated
where an applicant has suffered sexual, physical or psychological abuse as a result of his or her
race/ religion/ disability/ nationality and sexual orientation. In particular the Council has been asked
to clarify how racial trauma is addressed in the Scheme.
2.65 It is important to highlight that Lambeth accept that racism was an aggressive and divisive fact of life
that existed in society at large over many years, however there is currently no separate head of
damage in personal injury/abuse claims for racism/racial trauma. In these circumstances a civil court
will enhance a compensation award to reflect aggravating features, such as racial abuse.
2.66 In regard to the Redress Scheme, any racial abuse that an applicant has suffered will automatically
qualify an applicant for a harm’s way payment under the Scheme, of up to £10,000. Where an
application is also made for an Individual Redress payment (IRP) then any racial abuse is also
factored into the tariff bands. An appropriate tariff band is selected taking into account the Applicant’s
description of his/her abusive experiences whilst resident at a Lambeth children’s home (and/or
foster placement that directly followed a Lambeth children’s home). A suitable figure is then offered
by way of an Individual Redress Payment (IRP) taking into account all the circumstances of the case,
including any consequential injury to feelings, mental suffering, humiliation, distress, anger or
indignation etc. Abusive experiences that have a racial motivation would involve an award at the
higher end of the appropriate tariff band on the basis that race/racism is an aggravating feature.
2.67 The 10% uplift is an enhancement and not intended to compensate for the racial element of the claim
in isolation. The substantive award already acknowledges injury to feelings before one proceeds to
add the 10% by way of uplift. It is additional to what would likely be awarded in a comparable civil
claim.
2.68 It is of course recognised that it is almost impossible to differentiate between injury to feelings with
or without any racial element, as the whole experience is inextricably intertwined. The selection of
10% ensures that emphasis is given to recognising the particular damaging impact of racially
15

Page 22
motivated abuse without discriminating against other Applicants who, whilst not subject to racial
abuse, have nevertheless been subject to other distressing experiences.
Proposed Scheme extension
2.69 The Scheme has been open to applications for eighteen months as at the date of this report with a
total of 1,250 applications having been received and a steady number of new applications continuing
to be received each month including most recently in July and August. This indicates that information
on the Scheme is still reaching individuals as the numbers of new applications still remains relatively
high at 30-40 per month.
2.70 The Independent Inquiry into Child Sexual Abuse (IICSA) investigation into Children in the care of
Lambeth Council is scheduled to hold public hearings between April and November 2020 with the
final report on the Lambeth Council investigation likely to be published some months later in 2021.
There is likely to be further media coverage around the time of the hearings and also when the
subsequent report is published. The media coverage during this period is likely to reach some
individuals that may not have previously heard about the Scheme. It may also encourage others that
have not yet submitted an application, for whatever reason, to do so.
2.71 The Council is keen to ensure that as many eligible applicants as possible are able to make an
application through the Scheme and therefore it is considered appropriate to extend the closing date
for applications to the Scheme by a further two years to allow for eligible applicants to come forward
throughout and for a period after the IICSA investigation into Lambeth Council.
2.72 The Council is able to give three months’ notice to make any variations to the Scheme as detailed
at paragraph 3.4 of the Scheme document. It is therefore proposed that the closing date as outlined
in paragraph 3.2 of the Scheme document is now extended by a further two years and an amendment
made to the wording in this section to read: “Any application to join the Scheme which is received by
5pm on 1 January 2022 will be accepted into the Scheme for consideration”.
2.73 The publication of this report will act as the necessary three month notice period for the above
variation.
2.74 In extending the Scheme for a further two year period it is thought to be highly unlikely that further
application numbers each month will increase to the levels previously seen. It is estimated that
numbers will continue to be received at the current rate of around 30-40 per month and will gradually
decline over the extension period. Extending the Scheme could see the total number of applications
received fall somewhere between the revised estimate of 2,100 and the original estimate of 3,000.
Access to records update
2.75 The Council continues to run a large specialist team of 50 staff responding to requests from former
children in the care of Lambeth for their Council care files. So far over 1,250 requests for historical
care records have been received since January 2017 which is an unprecedented number and
equates to over 3,000 volumes of files.
2.76 The Council has invested more than £3million in providing this service. Applicants to the Lambeth
Children’s Homes Redress Scheme are not required to make a Subject Access Request (SAR). But
feedback from survivors who have received their records from the Council indicate that for some
having their care file can help them understand issues they experienced in their childhood.
2.77 The Council continues to provide updates to the ICO on progress with the SARS project.
Update on Independent Inquiry into Child Sexual Abuse
16

Page 23
2.78 The Independent Inquiry into Child Sexual Abuse (IICSA) has 14 different strands for investigation,
including Children in the care of Lambeth Council. Lambeth Council is a core participant in this
investigation and continues with its preparations having now disclosed 200,000 pages of relevant
documents and files to IICSA.
2.79 In March 2018 IICSA set out 20 core issues it proposes examining in relation to Lambeth, and the
Council is currently preparing a draft corporate witness statement on specific historical issues
requested by IICSA.
2.80 On 12 November 2018 IICSA determined the institutions which would be the focus of case studies
at the public hearings, namely:






Shirley Oaks Children’s Home;
Angell Road Children’s Home;
South Vale Assessment Centre;
Ivy House Children’s Home; and,
Monkton Street Children’s Home.

2.81 On 19 June 2019 IICSA announced that public hearings in all of its investigations will conclude by
November 2020, so we expect the Lambeth hearing to take place sometime between April and
November 2020. Confirmation of the actual hearing dates is still awaited.
2.82 On 23 July 2019 an update on progress in its investigation into allegations of child sexual abuse in
Lambeth children’s homes was given at a fourth preliminary hearing. Notably, IICSA have granted
core participant status to seven complainant/survivors in 2019 and the Inquiry remains open to
receiving further applications from survivors or victims.

3.

FINANCE

3.1

The total cost incurred in operating the Scheme (including compensation payments over £125,000)
as at the end of eighteen months of operation is £21,842,949. These costs are cumulative running
from the start of the Scheme on 2 January 2018 through to the end of June 2019. A breakdown of
the expenditure is shown in the following table:

Expenditure type
Redress applications – Paid to applicants Harm’s Way
Redress applications – Paid to applicants Individual Redress
Redress applications – Applicant legal costs
Redress applications – Council’s legal costs
Redress applications – Disbursements (medicals, travel etc.)
Redress applications – Appeal Panel costs
Redress Scheme – Scheme administration advice & support
Redress Scheme – Staffing costs
Redress Scheme – Operational costs (advertising, post)
Total cost of Redress applications

Expenditure
amount (£)
9,883,000
5,158,253
1,612,566
1,377,698
982,318
26,792
267,373
980,156
121,566
20,409,722

Applications exceeding Scheme limit – paid to applicants
Applications exceeding Scheme limit – Applicant legal costs
17

1,090,450
261,000

Page 24
Applications exceeding Scheme limit – Council’s legal costs
Total cost of applications exceeding Scheme limit

Total cost of Redress and those exceeding Scheme limit

81,777
1,433,227

21,842,949

3.2

Prior to the launch of the Scheme the Council received independent actuarial advice in assessing
the cost and value for money of operating a Redress Scheme compared to the conventional
approach to handling such claims through a civil litigation route. Further actuarial reviews have
been undertaken periodically with a full review of the available data completed as at this reporting
period.

3.3

An original estimate suggested that the possible number of applications to the Scheme could be
3,000, at an estimated cost to the Scheme of up to £100 million plus a further £40 million to deal
with the more complex claims over the Scheme limit. The Council secured a capitalisation directive
from the Government to borrow the up to £100 million needed to fund the Scheme. This was based
on assumptions as the only basis upon which to determine the actual number of applications that
would be made.

3.4

As at the end of the first year following review of the then available data the estimate was revised
to 2,100 applications at a cost of up to £100 million now including the more complex claims over
the Scheme limit. The latest data available shows that the number of applications received still
remain below the revised estimate and therefore within the £100m agreed capitalisation level
approved by MHCLG.

3.5

As at the eighteen month point the total estimated cost of applications within the Scheme (i.e.
those known and reported as at 30 June 2019) was just under £53 million. This figure comprises of
actual payments and costs incurred as at this date and an estimated forecast of payments and
costs still to be made against those applications received and still open at this time.

3.6

It is proposed to extend the closing date of the Scheme by a further two years, however given the
actual performance data to date and the revised forecast it is considered that the overall cost of the
Scheme including the two year extension will still come within £100 million.

3.7

Weekly monitoring of application numbers and the costs incurred is undertaken and this includes
forecasting of the likely overall Scheme cost. This regular forecasting allows us to monitor the risk
of costs escalating outside of forecast so that early intervention measures can be considered.

4.

LEGAL AND DEMOCRACY

4.1

The Council has a legal power to establish a redress Scheme under s. 1 Localism Act 2011 which
introduced a “general power of competence” (GPOC) which gives the local authority “the power to
do anything that individuals generally may do” and which expressly includes the power to do
something for the benefit of the authority, its area or persons resident or present in its area.

4.2

The GPOC in common with any other source of power must be exercised reasonably and properly.
The Council must be mindful of its fiduciary duty to Council tax payers and, therefore, needs to
balance the needs of survivors against its public duty to ensure that applications are appropriately
validated and that payments are reasonable and lawful.

18

Page 25
4.3

The Council’s auditors have a statutory duty under the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 to
be satisfied that “the authority has made proper arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and
effectiveness in its use of resources”.

4.4

The Scheme provides for the award of a Harm’s Way Payment of up to £10,000 where there is
evidence that residents were subjected to a harsh environment as defined under the Scheme. It
would not be lawful for the Council to introduce a Scheme which simply allowed for payment of a
Harm’s Way Payment without provision of a threshold based on some form of evidence in order to
validate payment.

4.5

As a public body the Council has a duty to exercise its powers properly and reasonably. In this
context “properly” includes that legally irrelevant considerations are left out of account and all legally
relevant considerations are taken into account. Importantly, where expenditure is involved,
“reasonably” includes compliance with the fiduciary duty to council tax payers owed by a local
authority and reaffirmed by the Court of Appeal in Charles Terence Estates Ltd v Cornwall County
Council [2013] 1 WLR 466, at paragraphs 11 – 17. The fiduciary duty is a duty not to incur
expenditure “thriftlessly” and to act “in a fairly business-like manner” with “due regard” for the
interests of council tax payers and holding a balance between those who contribute funds and those
who receive payment. It is considered reasonable in all the circumstances to extend the Scheme for
a further two years given the likelihood of further claims coming forward during this period which will
need to be responded to appropriately.

4.6

It has been suggested that the Council could make blanket Harm’s Way Payments based on
residence alone. This would amount to an unlawful fetter of its discretion and would not be
considered fair as between former residents in differing circumstances.

4.7

The Council has taken advice from leading counsel in the development of the Scheme. The advice
from counsel is that the Scheme delivers appropriate recompense for those who were subjected to
abuse and that the Tariffs to be applied in assessing the level of award payable under the Scheme
reflect the awards that the civil courts would make. There will be some complex cases which would
not be suitable to deal with through the Scheme, however, as they require a much more detailed
analysis of the loss of educational or employment opportunities these cases are better dealt with
through the civil process.

4.8

All public authorities are required, in carrying out their functions, to have due regard to the need to
achieve the objectives set out under s149 of the Equality Act 2010 to:
a)
(b)
(c)

4.9

eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any other conduct that is prohibited by
or under the Equality Act 2010;
advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant protected characteristic
and persons who do not share it; and,
foster good relations between persons who share a relevant protected characteristic and
persons who do not share it.

This proposed key decision has not been entered in the Forward Plan and so the necessary 28 clear
days noti’ce has not been given. The reasons why the report was not included in the forward plan
and that the decision cannot be delayed will be included in the necessary public notice to be
published on the Council’s website (and sent to the Chair and Vice-Chair of Overview & Scrutiny
Committee and relevant officers) alongside this report. The report and notice will be published on
the website for five clear days before the decision is approved by the Cabinet Member/Cabinet
Member in consultation with the Leader of the Council. A further period of five clear days - the call19

Page 26
in period – will then elapse before the decision is enacted. If the decision is called-in during this
period, it cannot be enacted until the call-in has been considered and resolved.

5.

CONSULTATION AND CO-PRODUCTION

5.1

In developing the Scheme the Council had many meetings with the Shirley Oaks Survivors
Association and their legal advisors to try to reach agreement on the provisions to be included in the
Scheme.

5.2

The Council also consulted with other key stakeholders in relation to the development of the Scheme
including the Council’s external auditors, insurers and independent experts.

5.3

Since the launch of the Scheme the Council has met with a number of applicant solicitor firms to
discuss and clarify operational aspects of the Scheme as outlined earlier in this report.

5.4

The Council is continuing to consult with a wide range of local voluntary sector, advocacy and advice
agencies as well as national organisations in relation to promoting access to the scheme.

6.

RISK MANAGEMENT

6.1

There are no direct risk implications arising from this report. An operational project risk register is
maintained.

7.

EQUALITIES IMPACT ASSESSMENT

7.1

The Council has undertaken a brief update of the Equalities Impact Assessment (EIA) of the Redress
Scheme completed in March 2019. The objective of the EIA was to:
i)
ii)

Contribute to the ongoing operational review of the Redress Scheme including implementation
of recommendations arising from the previous EIAs.
Provide some equalities analysis of applications and payments under the Redress Scheme up
until the end of June 2019. A copy of the Equalities Impact Assessment is at Appendix E.

7.2

Maximising uptake of the Redress Scheme by on behalf of individuals who may be eligible remains
a key priority for the Scheme. To this end the Council has maintained a regular programme general
and targeted communications to key groups including people from Black and Minority Ethnic (BME)
communities; people with physical or mental health conditions; and people who may be now living
abroad. In addition the Redress Scheme is working with colleagues in Adult Social Care to identify
and facilitate claims from people who may have resided in one of Lambeth’s specialist units for
children with physical and/or learning disabilities or other specific needs.

7.3

The key finding from the EIA is that whilst on a monthly basis applications to the scheme remains
steady, the Council recognises the need to:
•
•
•

Continue efforts to ensure potentially eligible applicants are aware of the scheme including
dissemination of information to partners and stakeholders;
Seek regular feedback as to the process to make it as straightforward as possible given the
multiple reasons that may deter individuals from making an application;
Monitoring progress of the scheme and impact in relation the Council’s duties under equalities
legislation on regular basis throughout the duration of the scheme including any agreed
extension.
20

Page 27

8.

COMMUNITY SAFETY

8.1

There are not considered to be any implications under s. 17 the Crime and Disorder Act 1998

9.

ORGANISATIONAL IMPLICATIONS

9.1

Environmental
None

9.2

Staffing and accommodation
The Scheme is administered by the Redress Team in conjunction with the Council’s external
solicitors – Kennedys LLP. All existing members of the team have received training from the National
Association for People Abused in Childhood (NAPAC) with any new team members being trained as
soon as is reasonably practical. In addition staff have undergone conflict checks to ensure they have
not had previous dealings with any council matters relevant to the applications. Resourcing
requirements are regularly monitored and additional staffing has been put in place in order to ensure
that redress applications are effectively processed.

9.3
9.4

Procurement
The Council has commissioned Oxleas Mental Health NHS Trust to provide independent counselling
to survivors for the duration of the Scheme. Under the Scheme applicants will be able to access the
specialist and dedicated confidential counselling support service. This service will be funded by the
Council for the duration of the Scheme. Oxleas will advise if some individuals will require ongoing
support and how this support could best be provided. The Scheme solicitors were commissioned
following a previous contract variation waiver to the existing insurance legal services framework. The
independent appeal panel members were commissioned at the time the Scheme was launched
although they operate completely independently of the Council when determining appeals submitted
under the remit of the Scheme.

9.5
9.6

Health
The long-term mental and physical health effects of childhood abuse are well documented, and we
know from the stories that people have told us that their experiences have remained with them their
entire lives. Nothing can fully compensate people for those experiences but it is important for
survivors that the abuse that happened to them is recognised and acknowledged, and that they
receive an apology. Survivors of abuse also wish to know that children today will be better protected.
It is also the case that because of the adversarial nature of the court process survivors of abuse can
be re-victimised by having to recount their experiences. The aim of the Redress Scheme is to prevent
re-victimisation whilst providing a range of reparations that hopefully will enable people to move on
with their lives.

10. TIMETABLE FOR IMPLEMENTATION
10.1 Not applicable

21

Page 28
Audit Trail
Consultation
Name/Position
Councillor Jack Hopkins
Andrew Travers
Christina Thompson,
Strategic Director
Fiona Connolly, Interim
Strategic Director
Annie Hudson, Strategic
Director
Alison McKane, Director
Paul Bates, Director of
Strategy &
Communications
Nisar Visram, Assistant
Director
David Orekoya,
Lead Commissioner
Health Improvement
Wayne Chandai, Head of
Democratic Services

Lambeth directorate /
department or partner
Leader of the Council
Chief Executive

Comments in
paragraph:

05.09.19
05.09.19

Date
Received
05.09.19
05.09.19

Finance & Investment

05.09.19

06.09.19

Throughout

Adults and Health

05.09.19

06.09.19

Throughout

Children’s Services

12.08.19

12.08.19

Legal & Governance

05.09.19

06.09.19

Throughout

Strategy & Communications

02.09.19

02.09.19

Throughout

Finance & Investment

16.08.19

16.08.19

3.1 – 3.7

Adults and Health

16.08.19

20.08.19

7.1 – 7.3

Legal and Governance

05.09.19

05.09.19

Date Sent

Report History
Original discussion with Cabinet Member
Report deadline
Date final report sent
Part II Exempt from Disclosure/confidential
accompanying report?
Key decision report
Date first appeared on forward plan
Key decision reasons

Background information

Appendices

Ongoing
06.09.19
06.09.19
No
Yes
General Exception
N/A
Council Report July 2015
Cabinet report June 2016
Financial Planning and Medium Term Strategy Report
2017/18 to 2019/20 – Cabinet July 2017
Council report July 2017
Cabinet Report December 2017
Appeal Panel ODDR
A – Summary of Redress available
B – Redress June performance dashboard
C - List of Lambeth Children’s Homes
D – Audit of applications
E - Equality Impact Assessment

22

Page 29
Appendix A
Lambeth Children’s Homes Redress Scheme
Summary of Redress available under the Scheme

The Scheme provides two types of financial redress that are available:Harm’s Way Payment (“HWP”)
This is a payment made for applicants who were resident at a Lambeth Children’s Home and feared
that they would be physically and/or sexually abused, and/or who were neglected and/or suffered
cruelty whilst resident at a Lambeth Children’s Home where specified criteria is met. A Harm’s Way
Payment of up to £10,000 is available to eligible applicants.
All former residents of a Lambeth Children’s Home who were living in and subjected to a harsh
environment are eligible to receive a Harm’s Way Payment of up to £10,000. Payments are stepped
based on time spent in a Lambeth Children’s home as follows:
•

More than 6 months – Harm’s Way Payment of £10,000

•

Between 3 and 6 months – Harm’s Way Payment of £5,000

•

More than 1 week and up to 3 months – Harm’s Way Payment of £2,500

•

Less than 1 week – Harm’s Way Payment of £1,000

A harsh environment is one which caused former residents to fear or apprehend that they would be
subject to immediate physical abuse, and mistreatment or sexual abuse and/or neglect and/or
cruelty. Where a Harm’s Way Payment is paid and the person also applies for an Individual Redress
Payment the Harm’s Way Payment will be treated as an interim payment for redress

Individual Redress Payment (“IRP”)
This is a payment made for applicants who suffered sexual abuse and/or physical abuse and/or
psychological injury at a Lambeth Children’s Home and/or Shirley Oaks Primary School where
specified criteria are met.
The Scheme provides for an Individual Redress Payment up to a maximum sum of £125,000 for every
child who has been physically, sexually or psychologically abused by staff, house parent, social uncle
or aunt, or any other third party for whom the council has vicarious liability in relation to a Lambeth
Children’s Home and including Shirley Oaks Primary School.
More complex cases where compensation for loss of earnings could result in a higher award of
compensation over £125,000 will be dealt with outside of the Scheme as these cases involve a more
detailed forensic analysis of expert evidence to assess and ensure the appropriate level of
compensation is made to applicants. However, these cases will be handled in the spirit of the
Scheme.
Once an assessment of Individual Redress compensation has been completed an offer will be
provided to the applicant for them to consider. The council recognises that many applicants will wish
to take the time to carefully consider and consult on the offer that has been made and for some this
may be a difficult decision for them to make.

Page 30
Appendix A

Offers of Individual Redress are made based upon consideration of all of the information and
evidence that is made available at that time. In some cases subsequent information or evidence
including medical evidence may be presented by the applicant at a later stage which upon
evaluation may result in an increase in the level of compensation offered.
Compensation for any harm/consequence as a result of abuse suffered is calculated by reference to
the tariff which forms part of the Scheme. The tariff contains four compensation tariff bands. Bands
1-3 are designed to compensate for pain, suffering and loss of amenity, including
psychiatric/psychological injuries. In addition to damages for pain/suffering and loss of amenity Band
4 is designed to award additional compensation for loss of opportunity arising from the abuse and its
effects.

Maximum available payment
The Scheme provides for total compensation of up to £125,000, however complex cases where
special damages could result in a higher award of compensation will be dealt with outside of the
Scheme but still in the spirit of the Scheme as these cases involve a more detailed forensic analysis
of expert evidence and will take longer to process.

Application process
Anyone applying for compensation is required to complete an application form with as much
information as possible. A more detailed account or statement is required for those applying for an
Individual Redress payment. Completed applications are then verified against the information and
records held by the council to determine whether the applicant meets the Scheme criteria and is
accepted into the Scheme.

Appeals process
An Independent Appeal Panel has been established to deal with appeals made by applicants. The
appeal panel is chaired by a single retired judge who is supported by a pool of 7 barristers and 5
other experts. A full appeal panel comprising of the chair, a barrister and other experts adjudicates
on disputes arising concerning the amount of any Harm’s Way Payment, the amount of any
Individual Redress Payment and the amount of any legal costs and expenses claimed. Matters
relating to eligibility under the Scheme are adjudicated on by one panel member only, the panel
chair.
Appeals that are submitted by applicants are dealt with in the first instance by a ‘point of contact’ (a
pupil barrister) appointed by the panel chair who will determine in conjunction with the panel chair
the type of appeal that has been submitted and whether this requires a full panel of three to be
established or whether the appeal is primarily an eligibility matter to be determined by the chair
only in the first instance. The point of contact will then liaise as necessary between all parties to
ensure all information is collated and presented to the chair/appeal panel for determination. This
approach ensures that the appeal panel operates independently of the council.

Page 31

Appendix B - Redress Scheme Performance Dashboard June 2019

Lambeth Children's Homes Redress Scheme - Reporting Dashboard - June 2019
Applications received by
application type (YTD)*

Harm's Way only

%

Individual Redress only

%

HW and IR payment

%

TOTAL

229

18.3%

36

2.9%

985

78.8%

1250

* Year to date (since start of scheme) as at 30 June 2019

Number of applications received in 2018 (KPI 1)
160
140
120
100
80
60
40
20
0

135

132

119

111
86

83

73

85
65

57
37

20
Jan-18

Feb-18

Mar-18

Apr-18

May-18

Jun-18

Jul-18

Aug-18

Applications received (KPI 1)

Jan-18

Feb-18

Mar-18

Apr-18

May-18

Jun-18

Jul-18

Applications received
Total applications received

20
20

73
93

119
212

135
347

132
479

83
562

111
673

Sep-18

Aug-18 Sep-18

86
759

Oct-18
Oct-18

85
844

Nov-18
Nov-18 Dec-18

65
909

57
966

Dec-18
Year to Date

37
1003

1003

Number of applications received in 2019 (KPI 1)
55

60

48

50

46
37

40

32

29

30
20
10
0
Jan-19

Feb-19

Mar-19

Apr-19

May-19

Jun-19

Jul-19

Applications received (KPI 1)

Jan-19

Feb-19

Mar-19

Apr-19

May-19

Jun-19

Applications received
Total applications received

48
48

46
94

55
149

29
178

37
215

32
247

Aug-19
Jul-19

Sep-19

Aug-19 Sep-19

Oct-19
Oct-19

Nov-19
Nov-19 Dec-19

Dec-19
Year to Date

247

Number of application types received in 2018 (KPI 2)
120

110

104

101

96

100
80

70
46
38

40
20

71

70
57

60

29
12

8

15

14

27

20

10

2

3

Feb-18

Mar-18

2

2

15

15

13

3

12
2

19

9

7

1

0
Jan-18

Apr-18

May-18

Jun-18

Jul-18

Aug-18

Sep-18

Aug-18 Sep-18

Oct-18
Oct-18

Nov-18

Application Type (KPI 2)

Jan-18

Feb-18

Mar-18

Apr-18

May-18

Jun-18

Jul-18

Nov-18 Dec-18

Harm's Way only
Individual Redress only*
Harm's Way and Individual
Redress

8

14
2

15
3

29
2

20
2

10
3

15

15

13
2

12
7

19

12

57

101

104

110

70

96

71

70

46

38

Dec-18
Year to Date

9
1

179
22

27

802
1003

TOTAL

Number of application types received in 2019 (KPI 2)
45
40
35
30
25
20
15
10
5
0

41

38

36

25

24

19
15

9

8

6

6

1

2

2

Jan-19

Feb-19

Mar-19

6

4

3

2

Apr-19

May-19

Jun-19

Jul-19

Application Type (KPI 2)

Jan-19

Feb-19

Mar-19

Apr-19

May-19

Jun-19

Harm's Way only
Individual Redress only**
Harm's Way and Individual
Redress

6
1

8
2

15
2

6
4

9
3

6
2

41

36

38

19

25

24

Aug-19
Jul-19

Sep-19

Aug-19 Sep-19

Oct-19
Oct-19

Nov-19

Nov-19 Dec-19

Page 1 of 5

Year to Date

50
14

TOTAL
** Individual Redress only applications relate to applicants who are either deceased or were a visitor to a Lambeth Children's Home.

Dec-19

183
247

Page 32

Appendix B - Redress Scheme Performance Dashboard June 2019

Lambeth Children's Homes Redress Scheme - Reporting Dashboard - June 2019
Applications received by
application type (YTD)*

Harm's Way only

%

Individual Redress only

%

HW and IR payment

%

TOTAL

229

18.3%

36

2.9%

985

78.8%

1250

* Year to date (since start of scheme) as at 30 June 2019

Application Status (KPI 3)

Total number of
applications

Status as a % (KPI 3)
0%

Stage 1 - Verification
HWP Under Consideration
HWP Offer Made

23

1.8%

31

2.5%

IRP Only Under Consideration

16

1.3%

Sub total

70

5.6%

Stage 2 - Redress
determination
HWP Paid - Awaiting IRP
information
HWP Paid - IRP Under
Consideration

Application
TOTAL

Application
status as a %

23 Consideration
1.8%
HWP Under
31

16
1.3%
70
IRP Only Under Consideration

HWP Paid - Awaiting IRP information

0.2%

396

31.7%

110

8.8%

20

1.6%

6

0.5%

21

1.7%

72

5.8%

4

0.3%

8

0.6%

Sub total

639

51.1%

Stage 3 - Finalised
Claim Financials Settled Awaiting Final Costs / Nonfinancials
Redress Claim Settled HWP only
HWP Paid & Settled - (IRP
less than HWP value)
Redress Claim Settled
Redress Claim Settled - IRP
Withdrawn
Redress Claim Withdrawn by
Applicant
Redress Claim Settled (IRP
only)
Redress Claim Not Accepted /
Rejected
Redress Claim Closed
LIP/TPS No Response
Sub total
Over £125K Claims
IRP Over £125K
IRP Over £125K Settled

2

0.2%

396

31.7%

110

1.3%
0.2%

31.7%
8.8%

8.8%

20
1.6%
0.5%
IRP6Only Offer
Made
21

HWP Paid - Pre-Med IRP Offer

72
HWP Paid - Pre-Med IRP Rejected

1.6%
0.5%
1.7%
5.8%

4
HWP Paid - IRP Offer Rejected

8
0.6%
639
Redress Claim With Appeal Panel

0.3%
0.6%

Claim Financials Settled - Awaiting Final
Costs / Non-financials

8.1%

175

14.0%

175- (IRP less than
HWP Paid & Settled
HWP value)

50

4.0%

112

9.0%

50
Redress Claim Settled
112

41

3.3%

Redress Claim Settled
41- IRP Withdrawn

2

0.2%

2 by Applicant
0.2%
Redress Claim Withdrawn

4

0.3%

47

3.8%

4

0.3%

47

3.8%

Redress Claim Settled (IRP only)

Redress Claim Not Accepted / Rejected

2

0.2%

534

42.7%

Total number of
applications

Application
status as a %

2

0.2%
0.4%

7

0.6%

Reason Redress application has
been declined (KPI 3a)*

Total number of
applications

Abused In Foster Care

1

Not A LBL Children's Home
Threshold Not Met For
Harm's Way

18

Unable To Verify Applicant

25

6

14.0%
4.0%

9.0%
3.3%
0.2%
0.3%
3.8%

2
0.2%
Redress Claim Closed LIP/TPS No
534
Response

0.2%

IRP Over £125K

0.2%

2
IRP Over
5 £125K Settled
7

0.4%

50Reason
%
60.0%
50.0%
40.0%
30.0%
20.0%
10.0%
0.0%

8.1%

8.1%only
Redress Claim 101
Settled - HWP

101

5

40%

2.5%

HWP Paid - IRP Under Consideration

HWP Paid - (IRP less than HWP value)

Sub total

30%

1.8%

HWP Paid - IRP Offer Made

HWP Paid - IRP Offer Made
HWP Paid - (IRP less than
HWP value)
IRP Only Offer Made
HWP Paid - Pre-Med IRP
Offer
HWP Paid - Pre-Med IRP
Rejected
HWP Paid - IRP Offer
Rejected
Redress Claim With Appeal
Panel

20%

2.5%

HWP Offer Made

2

10%

Redress application has been declined as a % (KPI 3a)
50.0%

2.0%

36.0%
36.0%

12.0%

2.0%
12.0%

Abused In Foster Care
50.0%

Not A LBL Children's
Home

* Applies only to applications that were not accepted, rejected or with appeal panel

Page 2 of 5

Threshold Not Met For
Harm's Way

Unable To Verify
Applicant

Page 33

Appendix B - Redress Scheme Performance Dashboard June 2019

Lambeth Children's Homes Redress Scheme - Reporting Dashboard - June 2019
Applications received by
application type (YTD)*

Harm's Way only

%

Individual Redress only

%

HW and IR payment

%

TOTAL

229

18.3%

36

2.9%

985

78.8%

1250

* Year to date (since start of scheme) as at 30 June 2019

Year of residency in Lambeth
Children's Home (KPI 4)

Pre 1965
(Pre 01/04/1965)

564

1960s
(01/04/1965 - 31/12/1969)

195

1970s
(01/01/1970 - 31/12/1979)

Year of residency in Lambeth Children's Home as a % (KPI 4)

Total number of
applications

381

1250
50%
45%
40%
35%
30%
25%
20%
15%
10%
5%
0%

45.1%
45%

Pre 1965

91

7%
(Pre 01/04/1965)

19

2%

1960s
(01/04/1965 31/12/1969)

1990s
(01/01/1990 - 31/12/1999)

7.3%

1.5%

30%

1980s
(01/01/1980 - 31/12/1989)

30.5%
15.6%

16%

1970s
(01/01/1970 31/12/1979)

1980s
(01/01/1980 31/12/1989)

1990s
(01/01/1990 31/12/1999)

As at June 2019, almost half of applications to the scheme relate to abuse in Lambeth's Children's Homes prior to
1965 (564 or 45.1%). Three in 10 applications relate to abuse in the 1970s whilst the lowest proportion of
applications relate to abuse in the 1990s (1.5%).

Total number of
applications

TOTAL

Type of abuse reported as a % (KPI 5)
0.0%

Type of abuse reported (KPI 5)

Sexual, Physical &
Psychological Abuse
Sexual & Physical Abuse
Sexual & Psychological
Abuse
Sexual Abuse
Physical & Psychological
Abuse
Physical Abuse
Psychological Abuse
Put In Harm's Way
None

5.0%

10.0%

15.0%

20.0%

25.0%

30.0%

35.0%

1250

Sexual, Physical & Psychological Abuse
Sexual399
& Physical Abuse

399

118

118

Sexual & Psychological Abuse
Sexual Abuse

54
77
Physical & Psychological
Abuse

54
77

Physical Abuse

240

240
93

Psychological
Abuse
93

38

Put
38In Harm's Way

192

192
39

39

None

31.9%
9.4%

31.9%
9.4%

4.3%

4.3%
6.2%
19.2%

6.2%

7.4%

19.2%
7.4%

3.0%
15.4%

3.0%
15.4%

3.1%

3.1%

Of the 1250 applications submitted into the redress scheme, 1019 (82%) reported some kind of abuse of which
648 (52%) have reported sexual abuse (including physical and/or psychological abuse in the majority of these
cases). 333 (27%) of the 1250 applications have reported physical abuse that was not of a sexual nature but in
the majority of these cases also included psychological abuse. 177 applicants (14%) reported child on child abuse
during their time at a Lambeth Children's Home and 196 (16%) reported racial abuse.

Lambeth Children's Home
(KPI 6)

Shirley Oaks
Southvale
Woodvale
Chevington House
Garrads Road
St Saviours
Cumberlow Lodge
Stockwell Park
Highland Road
Others**

Number of
admissions*

1277
313
55
48
44
41
39
32
29
255

Lambeth Children's Homes as a % (KPI 6)
2133
59.9%
70.0%

59.9%

60.0%
14.7%
50.0%

2.6%

40.0%

2.3%

30.0%

2.1%
20.0%
10.0%
1.9%

14.7%
2.6%

2.3%

2.1%

12.0%

1.9%

1.8%

1.5%

1.4%

0.0%

1.8%
1.5%
1.4%

12.0%

* The admissions data includes multiple counts from applicants who attended more than one residency (or more than one house within Shirley Oaks).
** 255 applications (12.0%) relate to Lambeth homes that have been grouped together in an 'Others' category because the numbers for each individual home are too low to list
separately - this includes 54 non-Lambeth homes.

As at June 2019, Shirley Oaks Children's Home had the largest number of admissions (59.9%) folowed by
Southvale (14.7%).

Page 3 of 5

Page 34

Appendix B - Redress Scheme Performance Dashboard June 2019

Lambeth Children's Homes Redress Scheme - Reporting Dashboard - June 2019
Applications received by
application type (YTD)*

Harm's Way only

%

Individual Redress only

%

HW and IR payment

%

TOTAL

229

18.3%

36

2.9%

985

78.8%

1250

* Year to date (since start of scheme) as at 30 June 2019

Applicants' legal representation
(KPI 7)

Number of
applications

Switalskis
Verisona Law
Birnberg Peirce
Applicants in person
Bolt Burdon Kemp
Slater & Gordon
Hudgell Solicitors
Imran Khan & Partners
Ao Advocates
Irwin Mitchell
Leigh Day & Co
Others*

290
181
173
151
84
83
64
52
50
43
23
56

Applicants' third party legal costs
(KPI 7a)

Total costs (£)

Applicants' legal representation as a % (KPI 7)
0.0%

1250

5.0%

Switalskis
14.5%
Verisona Law
13.8%
Birnberg Peirce
12.1%Applicants in person
6.7% Bolt Burdon Kemp
6.6%
Slater & Gordon
5.1%
Hudgell Solicitors
4.2%
Imran Khan & Partners
4.0%
Ao Advocates
3.4%
Irwin Mitchell
1.8%
Leigh Day & Co

10.0%

15.0%

20.0%

25.0%

23.2%

23.2%

14.5%
13.8%
12.1%
6.7%
6.6%
5.1%
4.2%
4.0%
3.4%
1.8%

4.5%
* These are solicitor firms that have been grouped together as an 'Others' category because the numbers for each individual firm are too low to list separately.

Switalskis
Verisona Law
Imran Khan & Partners
Birnberg Peirce
Bolt Burdon Kemp
Slater & Gordon
Hudgell Solicitors
Irwin Mitchell
Ao Advocates
BL Claims Solicitors
Leigh Day & Co
Others*
TOTAL

Applicants' third party legal costs as a % (KPI 7a)
0.0%

1873566

562,411
327,130
262,692
256,629
169,789
71,399
59,010
46,420
35,840
32,700
24,145
25,400
1,873,566

Switalskis
Verisona Law
17.5%
Imran Khan & Partners
14.0%
Birnberg Peirce
13.7%
9.1% Bolt Burdon Kemp
Slater & Gordon
3.8%
Hudgell Solicitors
3.1%
Irwin Mitchell
2.5%
Ao Advocates
1.9%
BL Claims Solicitors
1.7%
Leigh Day & Co
1.3%
Others*

5.0%

10.0%

15.0%

20.0%

25.0%

30.0%

35.0%

30.0%

30.0%

17.5%
14.0%
13.7%

9.1%
3.8%
3.1%
2.5%
1.9%
1.7%
1.3%
1.4%

1.4%

* These are solicitor firms that have been grouped together as an 'Others' category because the numbers for each individual firm are too low to list separately.

In total as at June, 1099 out of 1250 applicants have used legal representation (88%). Almost one in four
applications (23.2%) were legally represented by Switalskis solicitors whilst around one in eight applicants (12.1%)
handled their own applications. Switalskis solicitors have received the highest amount of third party legal
payments across all claim types (£562,411).

Harm's Way payments
(KPI 8)

No. of verified
payments

Total amount
paid (£)

3

3,000

100

250,000

70

350,000

928

9,280,000

1101

9,883,000

Harm's Way payments as a % (KPI 8)

9,883,000

0%

£1,000 - less than 1 week
£2,500 - more than 1 week
up to 3 months
£,5000 - between 3 and 6
months
£10,000 - more than 6
months
Total Harm's Way
payments

0.03%

£1,000 - less than 1 week

£2,500 - 2.53%
more than 1 week up to 3
months

20%

40%

60%

80%

100%

0.03%
2.53%

3.54%

£,5000 - between 3 and 6 months

3.54%

93.90%

£10,000 - more than 6 months
100.00%

Page 4 of 5

93.90%

Page 35

Appendix B - Redress Scheme Performance Dashboard June 2019

Lambeth Children's Homes Redress Scheme - Reporting Dashboard - June 2019
Applications received by
application type (YTD)*

Harm's Way only

%

Individual Redress only

%

HW and IR payment

%

TOTAL

229

18.3%

36

2.9%

985

78.8%

1250

* Year to date (since start of scheme) as at 30 June 2019

Individual Redress Payments
(KPI 9)

Interim IRP
Band 1
Band 2
Band 3
Band 1 (plus Band 4)
Band 2 (plus Band 4)
Band 3 (plus Band 4)
Total Individual Redress
payments
Payments over £125K
(KPI 9a)

Payments over £125K

No. of verified
payments

Total amount
paid (£)

46
72
66
21
5
20
20

564,000
616,950
1,252,823
837,700
93,000
537,130
1,256,650

Individual Redress payments as a % (KPI 9)

5,158,253
10.9%

0%

20%

24.3%Band 1
16.2%Band 2

24.3%

1.8%Band 3

16.2%

10.4%Band 4)
Band 1 (plus

1.8%

24.4%Band 4)
Band 2 (plus

10.4%

Band 3 (plus Band 4)

250

5,158,253

No. of verified
payments

Total amount
paid (£)

10

1,090,450

40%

10.9%
12.0%

Interim IRP

12.0%

24.4%

As at June 2019 there have been 250 verified Individual Redress (IR) payments (with 46 of these being interim
payments), however as shown earlier in this report, there have been 36 applications for Individual Redress only
since the scheme began and a further 985 claims for both Harm's Way and Individual Redress so the number of
IR payments will be expected to rise significantly over the duration of the redress scheme. In addition, the
payments above incurred legal and other costs totalling £4,315,358 - see breakdown of these further costs in the
table below (KPI 10).

Redress payment type
(KPI 10)

Total amount
paid (£)

Harm's Way payments
Individual Redress
Payments
Payments over £125K
Redress third party solicitors
legal costs

9,883,000

Redress payment type as a % of total amount paid (KPI 10)
60.0%
48.3%

48.3%

50.0%

5,158,253
1,090,450

40.0%
25.2%

25.2%

30.0%
5.3%
20.0%

1,873,566

9.2%

5.3%

10.0%
9.2%

7.1%

4.8%

0.0%

Redress own solicitor costs
Other costs (inc Expenses,
Medical Experts, Therapy /
Rehabilitation)

Total Redress payments

1,459,475

7.1% Harm's Way

payments

982,318

Individual
Redress
Payments

4.8%

20,447,060

Payments over Redress third Redress own Other costs (inc
£125K
party solicitors solicitor costs
Expenses,
legal costs
Medical
Experts,
Therapy /
Rehabilitation)

As at June 2019, a total of £20,447,060 has been paid out of the scheme (including £3,333,040 in legal fees,
including the payment of VAT on third party solicitors legal costs). Almost half of expenditure to date (48.3%)
relates to Harm's Way payments. It is expected that as the scheme progresses the proportion of total expenditure
for Individual Redress and payments over £125K (currently 30.5% collectively) will increase and eventually
surpass the percentage of Harm's Way payments.
A

B

A+B

Total forecast
Projected
Actual Redress
Redress
Redress
payments to date
payments made
payments not yet
(£)
and not yet made
made (£)
including actual
(£)
including
legal and other
including
projected legal
costs
projected legal
and other costs
Total Redress projected payments
and other costs
based on submitted applications
(KPI 11)

Total Redress forecast
payments

20,447,060

29,133,042

Percentage of payments made and projected
payments not yet made (KPI 11)

Total Redress forecast
payments

41.2%

0%

20%

58.8%

40%

60%

80%

100%

Actual payments made (A)

49,580,102
41.2%

Projected payments not yet made (B)

58.8%

As at June 2019, the forecast monetary value of all 1250 applications received into the redress scheme stood at
£49,580,102 of which £20,447,060 (41.2%) are actual payments made so far. The monetary value of projected
payments not yet made stands at £29,133,042 (58.8%) - this represents the Council's current outstanding financial
liability for the scheme based on the number and types of applications received at this time.

Page 5 of 5

This page is intentionally left blank

Appendix C

Page 37

LAMBETH CHILDREN’S HOMES
Below is a list of children’s homes that were run by Lambeth or its predecessor
authority* (and which subsequently transferred to Lambeth), either within or
outside of their area, that provided accommodation for children in care.

1. Shirley Oaks
2. Almond House Hostel
3. Angell Road
4. Calais Street
5. Chestnut Road/ Robson Road
6. Chevington House
7. Cumberlow Lodge
8. Garrads Road
9. Gresham Place
10. Highland Road
11. Ingleton House
12. Ivy House/ Warham Road
13. Knowle Close
14. Lancester Avenue
15. Lancaster Road
16. Leigham Court Road
17. Lorn Road
18. Monkton Street
19. Mount Villas
20. Nottingham Road
21. Rathmell Drive
22. Rectory Grove/ Elaine Claire House
23. Samuel House
24. South Vale
25. Southwood
26. Southwood Discharge Hostel
27. St Saviours
28. Stephany House
29. Stockwell Park
30. The Elms
31. Thornwick Nursery
32. Tivoli Road
33. Woodvale
*Only those homes that were previously run by the London County Council (LCC) and which
subsequently transferred to the London Borough of Lambeth in April 1965 are covered by the Scheme.
Those homes that were run by the LCC and which transferred to another London borough after April 1965
are not covered by the Scheme.

LAMBETH CHILDREN’S HOMES | v2 04.04.2019

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 39

Executive summary of Audit report on the
Administration of the ‘Lambeth Children’s Homes Redress Scheme’

1. Terms of reference: to undertake an audit of a random selection of files where awards had been
made under the ‘Lambeth Children’s Homes Redress Scheme’ and to review the approach taken
by Lambeth in the making of offers and the settlement of applications.
2. The ‘Lambeth Children’s Homes Redress Scheme’: the terms of the scheme are set out in 2
documents, namely, a substantive document (of 14 pages) which sets out the scope and terms of
the qualifying criteria, and a document setting out 4 compensation bands/tariffs, which in turn
provide the parameters for settlement of particular categories of claims.
3. Method of selection of the files to audit: I was provided with a list comprising the names of all
applications which have been settled under the scheme (approximately 150) and I identified 76 of
the files on an entirely random basis, of which 53 were sent by courier to my Chambers on the
basis that they were concluded and could therefore be released. I have not seen the remaining 23
files, which I understand are not yet concluded.
4. Method of review: I have read through all sections of the 53 files with a particular focus on the
following documentation:
(i)

the evidence provided by the applicants of their experiences of abuse, which is
typically presented in one or more of the following ways:


within the scheme application forms



in witness statements attached to the scheme application forms, or in some
cases provided at a later date



accounts given by applicants to medical experts where a medical report has
been requested under the terms of the scheme;
Page 1 of 6

Page 40

(ii)

other evidence which might be available to corroborate/elaborate upon the evidence
provided by the applicants about their experiences and which might include:


social work records [although in many cases these have not been retained and
were not therefore available]

(iii)



GP and other medical records



witness statements from family members;

summaries of the above evidence complied by the file handlers as part of their
process of analysis, which is typically documented by the following methods:

(iv)



file notes



advice letters to Lambeth



offer letters to the applicants



attendance notes of discussions with Solicitors acting for the applicants



in 4 of the cases, attendance notes of discussions with litigants in person

general inter parties correspondence.

5. The evidence provided by the applicants: the evidence provided by the applicants was inevitably
anecdotal and there were significant variations in the quality, quantity and detail of the accounts
given by the applicants. It was also common for scant detail to be given in the first instance, then
to be supplemented at a later date upon further consideration. There was a clear recognition by the
file handlers that the evidence presented in support of applications might not always be as
complete in the first instance as it might be on further reflection. In the vast majority of cases
additional evidence was presented further down the line as a matter of course and the file handlers
would then simply undertake a reassessment of quantum on the basis of the new evidence. Where
Page 2 of 6

Page 41

offers were made but not accepted, the file handlers always pointed out in correspondence that
they would be happy to consider any additional evidence if it was provided.
6. The piecemeal nature of the evidence provided: although the vast majority of applicants were
represented by Solicitors, the impression given is that most of them were left to their own devices
to fill out the application forms rather than being guided by their Solicitors in this task. The lack of
detail provided in the early stages meant that the full picture of the abuse in terms of its nature,
frequency, duration and effects would often not emerge until later in the process. It is entirely
common for survivors of abuse to be unable or unwilling to make sensitive disclosures at the first
time of asking and in particular, psychological effects are often overlooked because it is a wellknown defence mechanism for survivors to seek to minimise the disabling effects of abuse.
7. Evidence in respect of the analysis of the evidence: in all cases the analysis of the file handlers
was clearly set out and documented. It was therefore possible to understand the basis upon which
quantum had been assessed and, where appropriate reassessed, with reference to the different
compensation bands.
8. The status of the evidence provided: the anecdotal evidence presented by the applicants was
taken at face value and there are no examples in the 53 files of file handlers seeking to be
judgmental on the grounds of credibility or any other basis. To the extent that issues of credibility
may have become relevant, these were raised by the jointly instructed Psychiatrists in the context
of their written medical reports and such issues were never flagged at the instigation of the file
handlers or Lambeth. In all 53 cases the file handlers adopted a straightforward interpretation of
the facts in favour of applicants when seeking to categorise the abuse within the appropriate
compensation bands and range.
9. The approach generally to the quantification of the claims: the scheme is an alternative to
litigation at common law and, whilst setting an evidential threshold, the correspondence and
telephone discussions between the parties around the issues of quantification were without
Page 3 of 6

Page 42

exception conducted on a non-combative collaborative basis. The file handlers always made it
clear they would be happy to reconsider any offers/counter-offers upon receipt of additional
evidence and in many instances, the provision of further evidence did result in higher offers being
made. The 2 main reasons for offers being increased from their starting point was the provision of
further evidence which suggested: (i) a greater duration/frequency/severity of abuse than
previously indicated and; (ii) specific psychological effects, whereas initial accounts may have
omitted to mention such information.
10. The stages at which offers were made: in many cases the applicants’ Solicitors requested that
offers should be made immediately and without the necessity to obtain medical evidence. In other
cases applicants chose to wait for medical reports to be available to inform the psychiatric picture.
Where Lambeth was invited to make offers this was done on the basis of the evidence then
available. All offers were prefaced with the clear instruction that, should they be considered to be
insufficient, Lambeth would be happy to receive additional evidence from the applicants or wait
for a medical examination. All cases in which initial offers were not acceptable were subsequently
resolved by higher offers being made following the provision of further evidence. In a small
minority of cases where applicants made counter-offers which were clearly excessive and outside a
reasonable range of assessment, resolution was achieved by Lambeth going some way to meet
such demands, justified as being in the interests of conciliation, to spare further trauma to the
relevant applicants and in the interests of reducing the financial costs associated with ongoing
disputes. As with most compensation schemes, there will always be applicants who consider their
claims to be exceptional and who are reluctant to fit into the designated tariffs, and where such
applicants emerged here, a pragmatic view was taken by Lambeth to appease rather than enter into
conflict.
11. The significance of legal representation: the vast majority of applicants had the benefit of legal
representation and it can reasonably be assumed that offers were only accepted in accordance with
appropriate legal advice.
Page 4 of 6

Page 43

12. The level of offers/settlements: on my analysis all of the settlements are within an objectively
reasonable range based on the information provided and, whilst in 2 of the cases, initial offers were
made at the lower end of a reasonable range, the vast majority of initial offers were made at the
higher end of a reasonable range. The tariffs set out in the compensation bands are not susceptible
to precise definition and, in common with the assessment of damages in any action for personal
injury, the ultimate figure will always fall within a bracket and sometimes within a relatively wide
bracket. I also identified several examples of offers which were arguably too high and possibly
higher than an objectively reasonable range, although these aberrations were recognised by
Lambeth at the time and accepted for various reasons set out above.
13. Litigants in person: 4 of the 53 files that I reviewed involved litigants in person; one who was in
Prison at the time; one deceased whose estate was represented by his daughter, one who had fallen
out with her Solicitor and the fourth who simply preferred to represent himself. The interactions of
the file handlers with this cohort of applicants is well documented and a number of positive points
are evident:


all were repeatedly informed that they could have access to their own legal advice paid for
by Lambeth



all were given careful explanations of the working of the scheme and the process



all were told there was no pressure and that they could have as much time as required to
consider offers



all were told they were at liberty to introduce further evidence and make any counteroffers as they saw fit



vulnerabilities were recognised e.g. by prompt responses to enquiries and correspondence;
by the provision of helpline numbers where concerns were raised about an applicant being
distressed and by the thoughtful and sensitive tone of the correspondence and discussions
Page 5 of 6

Page 44



all of these settlements fell within an objectively reasonable range of assessment.

14. Non-financial compensation: all applicants were also properly informed as to the availability of
non-financial compensation (apologies, meetings etc.) as set out in the scheme.

CATHERINE FOSTER

Dated this 23rd day of August 2019

CROWN OFFICE CHAMBERS
LONDON EC4Y 7HJ

Page 6 of 6

Equality Impact Assessment
TEMPLATE UPDATED SEPT 2015
Date

Please enter responses below in the right hand columns
Monday 4th March 2019

Sign-off path for EIA (please add/delete as applicable) If
you are conducting an EIA on a Cabinet decision, it should
come to Corporate EIA panel for sign off.
There is no corporately set sign off path for EIAs. It is up
to you to decide the level of risk (legal, community,
political, equalities) and to think about the appropriate
level of scrutiny and challenge. If you are not sure email
equalities@lambeth.gov.uk Places where an EIA can be
signed off are listed.









Head of Equalities (email equalities@lambeth.gov.uk)
Director (this must be a director not responsible for the service/policy
subject to EIA)
Strategic Director or Chief Exec
Directorate Management Team (Children, Health and Adults, Corporate
Resources, Neighbourhoods and Growth)
Procurement Board
Corporate EIA Panel
Cabinet

LB Lambeth Redress Scheme

Author

David Orekoya

Job title, directorate

Lead Commissioner-Health Improvement

Contact email and telephone

DOrekoya@lambeth.gov.uk 0207 926 0477

Strategic Director Sponsor

Fiona Connolly, Strategic Director, Adults and Health

London Borough of Lambeth
Equality Impact Assessment
1.0 Introduction
1.1 Business activity aims and
intentions

Please enter responses below in the right hand columns.

Page 45

Title of Project, business area, policy/strategy

The Lambeth Children’s Home Redress Scheme has now been in operation since January 2018. The
scheme - which to date remains unique England-has been established to compensate survivors of
1

In brief explain the aims of your
sexual, physical and psychological abuse suffered at homes managed by the Council from the 1930s
proposal/project/service, why is it
until the 1980s and 1990s. Overall scheme objectives are to:
needed? Who is it aimed at? What is the
 Provide some measure of acknowledgement and recompense for the harm and abuse that
intended outcome? What are the links to
some invidduals may have experienced whilst in the care of chilren’s homes in Lambeth
the political vision, and outcomes?
 Implement a process which seeks to manage claims as sensitively and efficiently as possible
given the potential legal and administrative complexity and the impact of lodging applications
on claimants themselves
 Ensure that applicants to the scheme are provided with appropriate practical and legal support
support throughout the process-including individuals making Subject Access Requests for
information contained on their care records
 Maximise the compensation received by elgible applicants whilst minimising as far as possible
associated legal and administrative costs.

Page 46

An initial EIA based on the principle of establishing a Redress Scheme was conducted in September
2017, followed by an EIA of the first 6 months operation of the scheme to assess whether the scheme
was performing in line with the intended outcomes. Following review and ratification by the Council’s
corporate Equalities Panel the finding of both these EIA’s was that the overall development and
operation of the scheme was in line with the Council’s obligations under equalities legislation.
Recommendations from both these EIA’s was that regular communications and engagement was
essential to ensure wide reach of information regarding the scheme. The objective is maximise
awareness of the scheme amongst the target audience-those who were in care and who may have
direct experience of or been affected by abuse. This includes:
 Advertising the scheme in the national press in recognition that many affected individuals live
outside London in other parts of the UK
 Piloting targeted advertising at media more likely to be used by particular communities, some
of whom may have returned to their home countries, such as individuals of African Caribbean
and Irish ethnicity.
 Ensuring organisations that represent victims and survivors have up to date information about
the scheme
 Advertising with a range of national and local voluntary sector, advocacy and advice agencies
and media outlets including those that represent and/or work with a range of potentially
vulnerable groups including: older people; people with physical and/or learning disabilities;
carers organisation; and welfare and legal advice agencies (including in the legal press); and
offenders.
 Providing information in easy read and audio file format for individuals who may need support
with literacy or have a visual impairment.
 Distributing information to local partners and providers who deliver care on behalf of the Council
in case they may identify individuals who may be entitled to claim but due to incapacity or ill
heath are unable to so without assistance
2



Checking the Council’s social care database to see whether there are any vulnerable individuals
–including those who lack capacity- currently in receipt of social care or other support from the
Council, who may come under the auspices of the scheme.

Aims and Objectives of Equalities Impact Assessment
The Council also committed to refreshing the EIA at the end of first year of the scheme and at regular
intervals throughout the lifetime of the scheme. Since the EIA completed in March 2019 the Council
has updated information regarding applications and settlement of claims to the scheme. Therefore it
was considered appropriate to undertake a brief refresh of the EIA conducted in March 2019based on
both applications received and claims processed from January 2018 to June 2019. This EIA provides
a brief narrative overview of:
A. Equalities characteristics of the potential cohort of applicants
B. Analysis of the Equalities characteristics of those have a lodged a claim
C. Update on the equalities characteristics of those who have had a claim settled and who have
received or been offered a Harms Way or Individual Redress Payment under the scheme for
scheme launch to date.

Page 47

As with the previous EIA’s there are number of caveats regarding availability of equalities data
including:
 Changes in legislative and policy for equalities monitoring for key ‘protected characteristics’
including ethnicity, disability and sexual orientation.
 Differences in information governance standards that prevailed during the period in question
which means that the local authority only has partial information on the denominator population
- i.e. all children who were accommodated in and/or in the care of children’s home managed by
the Council at the time.
 Ongoing evolution of our understanding of issues pertaining to health and disability compared
to the available knowledge at the time.
 The fact that we cannot require individuals who are making an application to the Redress
Scheme or associated elements (i.e. Subject Access Requests) to divulge equalities
information. As a result the Council only has partial equalities information on those who have
accessed the scheme, and many applicants who have provided equalities information have not
done so for all equalities fields.
1. Potential Cohort of Redress Applicants
Based on available information it is estimated that up to 15,000 children were accommodated in Shirley
Oaks and other homes managed by the Council up until the early 1990’s. Equalities data is captured
somewhat sporadically but there are approximately 12,100 available admission records from Shirley
Oaks residential complex, Southvale and some speclialist units managed by Lambeth Council:
3






Of these there are 9991 records of individual children admitted to these homes, of whom 5575
(56%) were boys and 4416 (44%) were girls
Admissions data indicates 1424(14%) were identified as potentially black and ethnic monirity
descent mainly in Southvale, however meaningful disaggregation of these global figures is
virtually impossible. However anecdotal evidence suggests most of these individuals would
have been of black African Caribbean, black African or mixed black and white Caribbean or
Afircan heritage. As there was no requirement to consistently capture equalities data this may
well be an underestimate.
Some two hundred individuals records suggest that their reception into care is linked to
assessment for behavioural, physical or learning disability. This is likely to be an underestimate
of all those who may have had vulanerablities to physical, learning or mental health disabilities
during their time in care.

Many individuals in care would have experienced mulitiple disadvantage linked associated with
poverty; neglect or abuse; and stigma and discrimination linked to ethnicity, gender or disability as well
for being accommodated or received into the care of the local authority.

Page 48

2. Equalities Characteristics of Lambeth Redress Scheme Applicants
From 2nd January 2018-31st 30th June 2019 there were 1250 applications for compensation and
redress under the Council’s scheme. Of these of 687 (55%) provided some equalities information,
though not all respondents completed all equalities fields. In consequence this means it is not possible
to cross match equalities data to understand if there if there are any specific trends regarding the
intersection of different equalities characteristics. Nevertheless summary of the available information
indicates that:
 Gender: As set out in Table 1 of 582 respondents who stated their gender 309 (53%)
applications were from men and 273 (47%) were from women
Table 1 Redress Applicants by gender
Time Period
Pre 1965
1965-69
1970-79
1980-89
1990-99
Total

Female
125
36
89
19
4
273

Male
156
44
88
16
5
309

4



Ethnicity: of 432 respondents, 280 (65%) identified as White or White English, Scottish or
Northern Irish; 14 (3%) identified as Irish; 72 (17%) as Black or Black Caribbean or Black
African; and 45 (10.5%) identified of mixed Anglo-African or Anglo Caribbean ethnicity.

Table 2 Redress Applicants by Ethnicity
Time
Black
Black
Mixed
Period
Caribbea
African/
Black/
n
Other
White
Caribbea
n
Pre 1965
9
3
9
1965-69
19
1
5
1970-79
29
5
13
1980-89
2
6
1990-99
4
Total
63
9
33

Mixed
Black/
White
African
7
2
1
2
12

White
British
Eng/Scot
/
Welsh
176
24
63
14
3
280

Irish

8
2
1
3
14



Page 49

Disability: Three hundred and ten (310) applicants self reported whether they considered
themesleves to have a disability. Of these 184 (59%) reported having a disability that limited
their daily activities a lot; 126 (40%) stated their disability had a moderate impact on daily
functioning; with the 90 (29%) providing no further details. These responses reflected their
current health and/or disability status not necessarily that when they would have been in care.
Based on the age and population profile of applicants it is likely that some of these issues may
be related to physical health conditions. For some individuals it may reflect psychological and
mental health conditions, although we are unable to determine any causal relationship between
experience in care and mental health outcomes based on these responses. However based on
testimony and national evidence we know that victims of trauma and abuse have higher
expressed levels of prevalence of poor mental health including substance misuse, offending
and mental health conditions including depression, PTSD and self-harm.
 Age: the ages of Scheme applicants range from early mid 30’s up to the those who are over 70
which reflects the period of time when people may have been exposed to harm or abuse. The
majority of claims 795 (56%) are 55-74 with significant numbers also aged between 45-55 and
aged over 75 which reflects the period of time when these homes were open when people would
have been placed in care.
3. Religion: of 562 respondents 336 (60%) identified as Christian; 154 (27%) of no religious
affiliation ; and 32 (6%) as atheist. Fewer than 1% each of all respondants identified affiliation
with other religions including Judaism, Islam or Buddhism.

5

3. Summary of Redress Payment Equalities Data
Applications are made to the scheme on the following basis: Harms Way Payment (HWP) – where an applicant is seeking conpensation for being exposed
to a harmful and harsh environment, aside from whether or not they were directly affected by
physical, psyhcological or sexual abuse
 Individual Redress Payment (IRP) – the applicant can lodge a claim for individual redress due
to direct experience of abuse that they may have suffered during their time in care. An
application can be made on behalf of a deceased person, or by a visitor who was known to
have suffered abuse in a Lambeth’s Children’s Home.
 Applicants can apply for both HWP and IRP.
As at the end of June 2019:
 Harms Way Payment (HWP) totalling £9.8 million have been paid to 1101 applicants.
 Individual Redress Payment (IRP) totalling £5.1 million have been paid to 250 applicants.

Page 50

2.0 Analysing your equalities evidence
2.1 Evidence
Any proposed business activity, new policy or strategy, service change, or procurement must be informed by carrying out an assessment of the
likely impact that it may have. In this section please include both data and analysis which shows that you understand how this decision is likely
to affect residents that fall under the protected characteristics enshrined in law and the local characteristics which we consider to be important in
Lambeth (language, health and socio-economic factors).
IF YOUR PROPOSAL ALSO IMPACTS ON LAMBETH COUNCIL STAFF YOU NEED TO COMPLETE A STAFFING EIA.

Protected characteristics and local
equality characteristics

Impact analysis
For each characteristic please indicate the type of impact (i.e. positive, negative, positive and
negative, none, or unknown), and:
Please explain how you justify your claims around impacts.
Please include any data and evidence that you have collected including from surveys, performance
data or complaints to support your proposed changes.
6

Race

Please indicate sources of data and the date it relates to/was produced (e.g. ‘Residents Survey, wave
10, April 12‘ or ‘Lambeth Business Survey 2012’ etc.)
Harms Way Payments
Of the 1101 applicants who have received a Harms Way Payment 600 have provided demographic
information for ethnicity. Of this 600 29.7% were BAME and 70.3% were white.

Gender

Individual Redress Payments
Of the 250 applicants who have received an Individual Redress Payment 147 have provided
demographic information for ethnicity. Of this 147 25.2% were BAME and 74.8% were white.
Harms Way Payments
Of the 1101 applicants who have received a Harms Way Payment 529 have provided demographic
information for gender. Of this 529 54.4% were male (including trans man) and 45.5% were female
(including trans woman).

Gender re-assignment

Page 51

Individual Redress Payments
Of the 250 applicants who have received an Individual Redress Payment 126 have provided
demographic information for age. Of this 126 57.9% were male (including trans man) and 42.1% were
female (including trans woman).

Information regarding this equalities characteristic has not been previously captured either formerly or
informally during the period in question.
Despite this there is no evidence to suggest that the operation of the Redress Scheme to date will
have any negative impact on people with this equality characteristic.

Disability

Harms Way Payments
Of the 1101 applicants who have received a Harms Way Payment 540 have provided demographic
information for disability. Of this 29.4% have their daily activity limited a lot by disability, 20.9% have
their daily activity limited a little by disability and 49.6% do not have a disability.
Individual Redress Payments
Of the 250 applicants who have received an Individual Redress Payment 131 provided demographic
information for disability. Of this 29.0% have their daily activity limited a lot by disability, 23.7% have
their daily activity limited a little by disability and 47.3% do not have a disability.
7

Age

Harms Way Payments
Of the 1101 applicants who have received a Harms Way Payment 623 have provided demographic
information for age.
Breakdown of HWP applicants by age is detailed in the Table 3 below.
Table 3 HWP by age band

Page 52

Individual Redress Payments
Of the 250 applicants who have received an Individual Redress Payment 153 have provided
demographic information for age.
Breakdown of HWP applicants by age is detailed in the Table 4 below.
Table 4 IRP by age band
Age band
Count of Age
Band
35-44
3
45-54
36
55-64
58
65-74
48
75-84
8
Grand Total
153

8

Sexual orientation

Information regarding this equalities characteristic has not been previously captured either formerly or
informally during the period in question.
Despite this there is no evidence to suggest that the operation of the Redress Scheme to date will
have any negative impact on people with this equality characteristic.

Religion and belief

Data on offers of Harms Way or IRP payments has not been broken down by faith or religious belief.
Despite this there is no evidence to suggest that the operation of the Redress Scheme to date will
have any negative impact on people with this equality characteristic

Pregnancy and maternity

Information regarding this equalities characteristic has not been previously captured either formerly or
informally during the period in question.
Despite this there is no evidence to suggest that the operation of the Redress Scheme to date will
have any negative impact on people with this equality characteristic.

Page 53

Marriage and civil partnership

Information regarding this equalities characteristic has not been previously captured either formerly or
informally during the period in question.
Despite this there is no evidence to suggest that the operation of the Redress Scheme to date will
have any negative impact on people with this equality characteristic.

Socio-economic factors

As with previous Equality Impact Asessments data on the socioeconomic status of applicants to the
scheme is not captured. However the national and local policy evidence is that the majority of children
received into care are more likely to have come from lower socio-economic backgrounds. These
individuals are more likely to experience persistently worse outcomes across all life domains including
education, income and health as a result of being in care which may have been compound by exposure
to and/or fear of abuse. This means they may be more likely to be in poor housing and on low incomes
including benefits. To this as part of the scheme we have:



Advised all applicants, family members or carers submitting applications on behalf of an
individual to get appropriate legal advice which is paid for by the Council.
Made sure that there is practical advice and support (including with completing forms, accessing
documents and records) available to those accessing the scheme.
9



Signposted individuals who may be awarded compensation whilst in receipt of benefits to
appropriate advice regarding how they might manage the impact of any award on their benefit
claim.

These all form part of the overall Redress Scheme and are available to all applicants for the duration
of the scheme. In addition implementation of the scheme aims to reduce the financial, administrative,
emotional and psychological burden of already vulnerable individuals seeking compensation.
Language

Information regarding language or communication barriers is not collated as part of the scheme.
However as part of the overall scheme design the Council has recognised that some individuals may
need support to a language issue (i.e. English is not their first language or they have difficulties with
literacy or communication difficulty linked to a learning disability, cognitive disability i.e. dementia or
linked to dyslexia for instance). To address this the Council has:




Health

Page 54



Advised all applicants, family members or carers submitting applications on behalf of an
individual to get appropriate legal advice which is paid for by the Council.
Made sure that there is practical advice and support (including with completing forms, accessing
documents and records) available to those accessing the scheme
Signposted individuals who may be awarded compensation whilst in receipt of benefits to
appropriate advice regarding how they might manage the impact of any award on their benefit
claim.

There are a number of individuals who were placed in care in one of the specialist units managed by
the Lambeth, due to a learning disability, physical or mental health condition for which they would have
required support. Therefore the Council instituted a project to cross check the adult social care
database with records of those in the affected children’s homes to identify if any current beneficiaries
of care services may be eligible for compensation. To date this has yielded data regarding 40 people
several of whom are being supported to make compenstation claims either through their carers or
through legal means to act in their best interest where individuals lack capacity and have no other
individual or representative to act on their behalf.
A number of claims are in process as a result of this action and should be finalised during Q3 2019-20
financial year.

10

2.2 Gaps in evidence base
What gaps in information have you
identified from your analysis? In your
response please identify areas where
more information is required and how
you intend to fill in the gaps. If you are
unable to fill in the gaps please state
this clearly with justification.

The Council is aware that we do not have information on several of the equalities characteristics and
have only partial information for race, gender, disability and health. This reflects the fact that the Council
cannot make it a requirement of the Scheme that applicants must supply equalities information.
Therefore we are reliant on that information that they are willing to volunteer. Moreover in order the
maintain a proportionate approach the Council has requested applicants provide data on race, gender,
disability, health religion and age as it is felt that these are relevant for the purposes of the scheme
whilst other areas might be considered more intrusive.

Page 55

3.0 Consultation, Involvement and Coproduction
3.1 Coproduction, involvement and The Redress Scheme has been developed with extensive input from a range of stakeholders
consultation
incorporating Shirley Oaks Survivors Association and their legal advisor; Cabinet and Members; and
Who are your key stakeholders and how senior officers. This has been to ensure that the scheme is in line with the principles espoused and
have you consulted, coproduced or
recognises the council’s ethical and moral duty whilst remaining within the boundaries of the authority’s
involved them? What difference did this constitutional and financial authority. The Council continues to take on stakeholder insight and
make?
feedback to refine the scope and operation of the scheme where appropriate within the bounds of the
Council’s legal and constitutional obligations.
The Council has also engaged a consultant to garner feedback from applicants regarding their
experience of accessing the scheme. Engagement is currently ongoing.
3.2 Gaps in coproduction,
consultation and involvement
What gaps in consultation and
involvement and coproduction have you
identified (set out any gaps as they
relate to specific equality groups)?
Please describe where more
consultation, involvement and/or
coproduction is required and set out
how you intend to undertake it. If you do
not intend to undertake it, please set out
your justification.

The Council acknowledges that gaps remain in the available equalities information due in part to the
historical nature of events some of which date back to before the formal constitution of the Council in
1965. Furthermore access to the Scheme cannot be predicated on completion of equalities data by
applicants, so the Council is reliant on individuals self-reporting this. By definition, this means that the
Council will only have partial equalities information.
Nevertheless the Council will continue efforts to ensure key groups access the scheme including:
 People of African Caribbean, African and Irish ethnicity.
 People with learning and physical disabilities, particularly those who may lack the capacity to
make a claim on their behalf.
 Older people and those individuals who may be in poor health.
 Individuals who have died but may have family members who may be entitled to claim on their
behalf.

11

Page 56

4.0 Conclusions, justification and action
4.1 Conclusions and justification
In terms of the general operation of the scheme the Council is committed to maximising uptake of the
What are the main conclusions of this scheme as far as possible from people who may be eligible to make a claim. This will entail
EIA? What, if any, disproportionate
continuing action to:
negative or positive equality impacts did
 advertise the scheme in both national, targeted and specialist publications in recognition that
you identify at 2.1? On what grounds do
many affected individuals live outside London in other parts of the UK.
you justify them and how will they be
 continuing to engage as far as possible with organisations that represent victims and survivors
mitigated?
to make sure they have up to date information about the scheme and can promote uptake of
the scheme.
 regularly circulate information about the scheme both local locally and nationally to health and
voluntary sector partners and organisations including advocacy and advice agencies; media
outlets; those that represent and/or work with a range of potentially vulnerable groups such as
older people; people with physical and/or learning disabilities; carers organisation; and welfare
and legal advice agencies (including in the legal press); and offenders.
 providing information in easy read and audio file format for individuals who may need support
with literacy or have a visual impairment.
 continuing tofollow up on those individuals identified on the adult social care database who
may be entitled to make a claim to ensure that they are facilitated to make a claim if it appears
they may be eligible..
 Maintaining current access to practical and flexible support to individuals who have been
affected by historic abuse including access to counselling and psychological support in
recognition of the distress that making applications can evoke or compound.
The Council is also aware that relatively low numbers of of applicants from people from BME
communities, particularly those from African Caribbean or mixed black and white Caribbean and African
heritage. This and previous EIA’s indicate that the proportion of applicants from these groups has not
significantly increased to date. In consequence the Council continues to explore potential ways to
increase uptake from BAME individuals, including reviewing current engagement and assistance
provided to access the scheme. This involves:
 Seeking to ascertain the views of actual and potential BAME applicants regarding the best way
to promote the scheme and actively encourage uptake
 Clarifying any percpetual and practical enablers and barriers that may impact on uptake of the
scheme
 Considering the best options to support indivduals who make applications to access their
records (SARS) and/or for compensation under the scheme.
12



Review access points to see what other options are available to increase uptake from BAME
as despite extensive efforts we recognise that we have not had the uptake that we would expect
to date

Page 57

4.2 Equality Action plan
Please list the equality issue/s identified through the evidence and the mitigating action to be taken. Please also detail the date when the
action will be taken and the name and job title of the responsible officer.
Equality Issue
Mitigating actions
Example:
Example:
That the equality analysis may not have Review the EIA and assess whether the mitigating actions were sufficient.
12/09/12. Joe Bloggs. Head of ABC
accurately covered all the equality
impacts; and the mitigations may not act
to reduce disproportionate impact

5.0 Publishing your results
The results of your EIA must be published. Once the business activity has been implemented the EIA must be periodically reviewed to ensure
your decision/change had the anticipated impact and the actions set out at 4.2 are still appropriate.
EIA publishing date
EIA review date
Assessment sign off (name/job title):
All completed and signed-off EIAs must be submitted to equalities@lambeth.gov.uk for publication on Lambeth’s website. Where possible,
please anonymise your EIAs prior to submission (i.e. please remove any references to an officers’ name, email and phone number).

13

This page is intentionally left blank

